
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 20 September 2022 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Governance 
and Audit 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Wednesday, 28 September 2022 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - Council Offices,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Paul Wood (Chairman) 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Richard Dixon-Warren, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Ian Stokes, 
Councillor Sue Woolley and Vacancy (Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later    
date, via the SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

4.   Updates from previous meeting 
 

To consider updates on Actions agreed at the meeting held on 20 July 
2022. 
 

(Page 11) 

5.   2021-2022 External Audit Plan 
 

This report provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the 
statutory audit of South Kesteven District Council for those charged with 
governance.  
 

(Pages 13 - 36) 

6.   Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

This report provides an update on progress against the internal audit plan 
and summarises the results of our work. 
 

(Pages 37 - 51) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC


 

7.   Annual Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and Business 
Continuity Report 2021-2022 
 

This report presents the Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and 
Business Continuity Annual Report 2021/22. It provides an overview of 
South Kesteven District Council’s management of health and safety 
arrangements to its customers, employees, and Members. It summarises 
the progress made and identifies key areas of focus to ensure the Council 
maintains its health and safety performance. 
 

(Pages 53 - 71) 

8.   Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman - Annual Review 
Letter 2022. 
 

To report the content of the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman’s Annual Review Letter for 2022. 
 

(Pages 73 - 79) 

9.   Short Scrutiny Improvement Review - Centre for Governance and 
Scrutiny 
 

To provide the Governance and Audit Committee with an update on the 
content of the short scrutiny improvement review carried out by the Centre 
for Governance and Scrutiny, together with an action plan which addresses 
the recommendations included as part of the feedback letter. 
 

(Pages 81 - 94) 

10.   Strategic Risk Register 
 

To provide an update on the Council’s Strategic Risk Register. 
 

(Pages 95 - 113) 

11.   Work Programme 2022 – 2023 
 

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2021 – 2022. 
 

(Pages 115 - 117) 

12.   Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

 



 
 

Meeting of the 
Governance and Audit Committee 
 

Wednesday, 20 July 2022, 2.00 pm 
 

Council Chamber – South Kesteven House,  
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, NG31 6PZ 

 

 

 

 
Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Paul Wood (Chairman) 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Richard Dixon-Warren 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
 
 

 

Cabinet Members present 
 
Councillor Adam Stokes, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for  
Finance and Leisure 
 
 

Officers  
 
Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 
Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance 
Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
Tracey Elliott, Governance and Risk Officer 
Sarah Downs, Democratic Officer 

 

 

 
11. Apologies for absence 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Sue Woolley. 

 
12. Disclosure of interests 

 
No interests were disclosed. 

 
13. Minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2022 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2022 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED as a correct record.  
 

 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

14. Updates from previous meeting 
 

The Chief Finance Officer informed the Committee that the money in respect of the 
fuel theft has yet to be paid.  An extension of 3 months was granted by the Court, 
expiring on 30 September 2022. 
 
A Member asked how the Scrutiny Review was going to be presented and which 
Committee would receive the report. 

 
The Assistant Director for Governance informed that the Scrutiny Review would go 
before either the Governance and Audit Committee or the Constitution Committee 
and that this would be confirmed with the Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance and Licensing, Councillor Linda Wootten.  

 
15. Auditor’s Annual Report 2020/21 

 
The External Auditor’s Annual Report prepared by External Auditors, Grant 
Thornton was presented to the Committee.  The report provided an overview of the 
planned timeline of the statutory audit of South Kesteven District Council. 
 
The Auditor clarified that amendments to the Code of Audit Practice meant that 
auditors now report in more detail on the Council’s overall arrangements, as well as 
key recommendations on any significant weaknesses identified.  The specific 
criteria were: 

 

• Financial sustainability 
 

• Governance 
 

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
 
The Auditor confirmed that overall the report was positive.  There were 
recommendations for improvement to risk management and the consideration of 
assets – both operational assets and investment property.  Maintenance was a 
considerable cost with some assets perhaps no longer required. 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• The report was welcomed as very positive with minor recommendations that 
were constructive.   

 

• Were all future reports to be following a similar format? 
 

• A Member commented that in reference to the review of scrutiny, it was a 
positive recommendation to involve Committees at an earlier stage. 

 

• When was the report finalised, there was a discrepancy in the dates of the 
timeline of the audit? 

4



 
 

 

• A Member asked for further detail on how the auditors arrived at the 
conclusion that ‘the challenging scrutiny was adequate’. 

 
The Chief Finance Officer requested that his thanks to Grant Thornton Auditors be 
recorded.  The Officer noted that more evidence had been requested in order to 
inform the findings contained in the report during thorough investigation and the 
conclusion was the Council is well-positioned with robust arrangements in place. 
 

 
The Auditor confirmed that the format and scope of future reports were determined 
by the statutory requirements of the Audit Code.  He confirmed that the report was 
drafted in February 2022 and finalised in May 2022 as there was a delay in the 
completion of some elements of the work.  It was clarified that a range of 
Committee minutes were reviewed as part of the work which led to the conclusion 
that ‘challenging scrutiny was adequate’. 
 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the Governance and Audit Committee noted and approved the 

Auditor’s Annual Report 2020/21. 
 
(Councillor Baxter asked that his vote to object to the report be recorded) 

 
16. Draft Financial Outturn 2021/22 

 
The Deputy Leader of the Council presented the Draft Financial Outturn Report for 
2021-2022 and informed the Committee that despite ongoing economic uncertainty, 
the overall position of the Council was favourable.  An overview of the provisional 
outturn was presented along with detailed information for the General Fund and the 
Housing Revenue Account.   
 
Continued uncertainty has brought financial pressures, particularly in the areas or 
Markets and Car Parking and this was expected to continue.  The Covid Reserve 
Fund that was introduced to protect the Council against unexpected costs during 
the Pandemic could now be closed down and transferred into other reserves. 
 
It is proposed to carry a number of budgets forward into 2022/23 to fund specific 
and previously approved projects.  The Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommended these on 27 
June 2022 for Cabinet approval on 12 July 2022. 
 
It was acknowledged that the recommended £500,000 in order to establish an 
inflation reserve was most likely to be insufficient but the ongoing position was 
being closely monitored on a regular basis. 

 
 

5



 
 

During discussion Members raised the following points: 
 

• More Council housing needed to be built to replace to housing stock that the 
Council lost through Right to Buy sales. 

 

• As there were underspends recorded within the Housing Revenue Capital 
Programme, could this be invested in the building of more Council Housing? 

 

• Members acknowledged that progress had been made with housing 
inspections and energy efficiencies. 

 
The Chief Finance Officer informed the Committee that the building of more Council 
housing was a complex issue.  Funds were limited and there were competing 
pressures ensuring a balance had to be struck between building more houses and 
maintaining current stock.  A mixed approach could be adopted as the Council 
could potentially consider working with partners or support local social Housing 
Associations.  These considerations were to be put before the Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee later this 
year but limited investment would be made until the findings of the stock condition 
analysis were confirmed. 
 
The Vice-Chairman of the Committee noted that the format of the report was 
difficult to access clearly online and requested that the format be amended to make 
the information more clearly available.  The Deputy Leader of the Council 
acknowledged this and explained the format had been agreed by the previous 
Chairman but that changes could be made in future publications. 
 
 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee: 

 
a)  Reviewed and approved the provisional Revenue and Capital    Outturn 

report and associated appendices for the financial year 2021/22.  
 
b)  Noted the budget carry forwards (appendices D and H) as approved by 

Cabinet on 12 July 2022.  
 
c) Reviewed and approved the following reserve movements in respect of 

the General Fund: 
 

• The balance of the COVID recovery reserve of £1.286m transferred 
to the ICT reserve increased by £0.202m  

• Waste and recycling reserve increased by £0.084m  

• Creation of an Inflation reserve to £0.500m  

• Invest to save reserve increased by £0.500m 
 

6



 
 

 
17. Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 including Annual Governance Statement 

 
The Assistant Director of Finance presented the report to the Committee.  A draft 

copy of the 2021/22 Statement of Accounts was now available for review by the 

Governance and Audit Committee prior to the completion of the audit process.  In 

accordance with the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2022, the 

statutory deadline for completing the 2021/22 audit and publishing the final 

accounts was 30 November 2022. 

The proposed public inspection period was to begin on 2 August 2022 and continue 

until 12 September 2022.  During this time members of the public could exercise 

their right to inspect the accounts.  A notice to that effect was published on the 

Council’s website.  Following completion of the audit, the final accounts were to be 

presented to this Committee together with the audit opinion.  

Members were asked to ensure that the Annual Governance Statement for 2021/22 

was an open and transparent reflection of the governance arrangements for that 

financial year.  The AGS formed part of the annual accounts and was reviewed by 

External Audit.   

Group Accounts would be prepared to reflect the Council’s relationship with 

Gravitas Ltd and LeisureSK Ltd on receipt of the draft financial statements for 

LeisureSK Ltd.  Due to materiality thresholds, it was not a requirement to include 

the other Council owned companies in the group accounts. 

As the audit progressed there may be further amendments which were to be 

incorporated into the accounts.  The Committee would be informed of any changes 

when the final accounts were presented for their approval. 

Members raised the following points during discussion: 

• Why does the Governance and Audit Committee not receive detailed accounts 

of the SK Companies for scrutiny? 

• Why are the accounts for EnvironmentSK Ltd not available on the Companies 

House website? 

• What will happen to the loan that EnvironmentSK Ltd are responsible for 

paying if they cease to exist? 

• Did the Chairman need to disclose an interest as a Director of EnvironmentSK 

Ltd?  

The Chairman reported that no interest was required to be declared in the general 

consideration of the Council’s statement of accounts as a Director of 

EnvironmentSK Ltd.  He confirmed, however, should any specific discussion on the 

accounts of EnvironmentSK Ltd arise he would declare an interest and not take part 

in those discussions. 

The Assistant Director of Finance confirmed that all SK Companies accounts were 

available for public view on Companies House website.  The Companies 

7



 
 

Committee would then consider the accounts at a future meeting.  The Officer 

informed Members that the accounts for EnvironmentSK Ltd would be uploaded 

onto the website by 29 July 2022 in accordance with statutory regulations. 

The Chief Finance Officer informed the Committee that the Cabinet had made no 

decisions on the future of EnvironmentSK Ltd and had chosen to consider the 

market.  The procurement and marketing process was due to start imminently. 

 

The Vice-Chairman asked for clarification on the Annual Governance Statement 

and referred to the areas of focus that were to be considered soon: 

• The report confirmed plans to undertake a 6-month assessment of the Peer 

Review.  Who would be consulted and was it to be published with results 

against targets? 

• What format was the action plan to take to respond to the recent scrutiny 

review? 

• Which companies were to be part of the planned review and which Committee 

would receive it? 

The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that the Annual Governance Statement was 

part of a draft document and the final document would return to the Governance 

and Audit Committee for approval.  Progress on the Peer Review was to be 

considered in September 2022 before returning to Cabinet later in the year.    

InvestSK Ltd had dissolved and Gravitas Housing Ltd was expected to provide a 

closing report once all sales were completed.  The Council had commenced a 

grounds maintenance procurement process; the outcome of which would have an 

impact on the future of the company.   LeisureSK would be undertaking a review 

with particular reference to the management fee and pressures in terms of inflation 

and utility costs. 

Information on the scrutiny review action plan was referred to the Assistant Director 

of Governance to confirm with Members as soon as possible. 

 

ACTION: 

That the Assistant Director of Governance confirmed what format the action 

plan would undertake and when it would be brought before the Governance 

and Audit Committee. 

AGREED: 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee: 

 
a) Have reviewed the draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 prior to the 

commencement of the external audit.  
 

(Councillor Baxter requested that his abstention from the vote be recorded) 

8



 
 

 
 
 

18. Prevention of Right to Buy Fraud - Procedural Information 
 

The Chief Finance Officer presented the report on the prevention of Right to Buy 
(RTB) fraud.  The report provided an update on the processes in place to safeguard 
the Right to Buy sales of Council Housing.  The report summarised two parts to the 
process: 
 

• Procedural information – the process undertaken. 
 

• Anti-Money Laundering declaration form – every applicant would be asked to 
complete this as a method of confirming all information required, to show 
transparency in the process. 

 
All secure Council tenants have a right to buy their home and must have been a 
social housing tenant of at least 3 years, though not necessarily within the authority 
of South Kesteven District Council.  Tenants receive a 35% discount if they have 
been a public sector tenant for between 3 and 5 years.  For each extra year after 
that, they receive another 1% for each year of tenancy up to a maximum of 70%. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer informed the Committee that the discount and application 
criteria was contained in legislation and therefore there were no discretionary rules 
that the Council could apply in respect of RTBs.   Approximately 40 properties were 
sold each year through the Right to Buy Scheme and there was a legal obligation 
on the Council to ensure that the process was followed accurately.  The Council 
has taken the opportunity to compare the declaration form with those of other 
Councils. 
 
One of the priorities within the process is that the Council is focussed on 
establishing the origin of the funding of each sale, so as to fully understand how the 
funds are secured.  More information was to be requested through a more robust 
process so any potential fraud could be identified. 

 
During discussion Members raised the following points: 

 

• The updated process was welcomed as good practice. 
 

• Had there been any reason to suggest that fraud had been detected? 
 

The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that it was good practice to review the process 
on a periodic basis, to ensure it was sufficiently resilient. 
 
 
 
AGREED: 
 

9



 
 

That the Governance and Audit Committee: 
 

a) noted the Prevention of Right to Buy Fraud – Procedural Information as 
shown at Appendix A and approved the Anti-Money Laundering 
Declaration Form (Right to Buy) attached as Appendix B. 
 

19. Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

The Work Programme was discussed and the following points raised: 
 

• The first report by the new internal auditors was to be heard at the next 
Committee meeting on 28 September 2022.  Members were looking forward 
to receiving it. 

• As the scrutiny review was to come before the Governance and Audit 
Committee, it was suggested that it was to be added to the Work Programme. 

 
Reference was made to the proposed meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee with the internal and external auditors.  The Chairman confirmed he had 
met with the auditors and a meeting with the Committee would be arranged in the 
future. 
 
AGREED: 
 
The Work Programme for 2022/23 to be amended to add the scrutiny review to 
the agenda of the 28 September 2022 meeting. 

 
 

20. Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 

 
There was no other business. 

 
21. Close of Meeting 

 
The meeting closed at 15:00. 

 
 

10



Action Sheet 
To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 20 July 2022 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee.  

Min 
no.  

Agenda 
Item 

Action(s) Assigned to Comments/status Deadline 

14 Updates 
from 
previous 
meeting 

That the Committee are notified 
if the money in respect of the fuel 
theft is repaid by the amended 
date of 30 September 2022. 

Chief Finance Officer Information to be shared 
with Members once 
available 
 

Following 
30 September 
2022. 

17 Draft 
Statement 
of 
Accounts 
2021/22 

Assistant Director of Governance 
to confirm format of action plan 
following Scrutiny Review  

Assistant Director of 
Governance (Deputy 
Monitoring Officer) 

Information to be shared 
with Members once 
available 
 

Report to be 
presented at 
Committee 
meeting on 28 
September 
2022. 

  

11

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



13

A
genda Item

 5



Public

14



Public

15

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Public

•

•

16



Public

•

•

•

•

17



Public

•

•

•

18



Public

19



Public











20



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

21



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

22



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

23



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

24



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•25



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

26

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Public

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

27



Public

28



Public

17

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

29



Public

30



Public

19

•

•

•

•

•

31



Public

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 

2019)

32

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Public

33



Public

22

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

34



Public

23

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

35



36



Internal Audit
Progress Report 

For all your assurance needs

South Kesteven 

District Council 

28 September 2022

37

Agenda Item 6



This report has been prepared solely for the use of Members and Management of South Kesteven District  Council. Details may 

be made available to specified external organisations, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be used or 

referred to in whole or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been 

prepared, and is not intended for any other purpose.

The matters raised in this report are only those that came to our attention during the course of our work – there may be 

weaknesses in governance, risk management and the system of internal control that we are not aware of because they did not form 

part of our work programme, were excluded from the scope of individual audit engagements or were not bought to our attention.

The opinion is based solely the work undertaken as part of the agreed internal audit plan.                                                                 

Contents

Lucy Pledge  - Head of Internal Audit & Risk Management 

lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Emma Bee – Audit Manager

emma.bee@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Alastair Simson – Principal Auditor

alastair.simson@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Page 2Key Messages 

Introduction 

Summary

Assurances 

Page 3Internal Audit work completed

Overview of Assurances 

Audit Reports at Draft 

Work in Progress 

Page 10Appendices

1 - Assurance Definitions

2 - Audit Tracker of Due Actions

3 - Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 – Progress to Date 

Page 7Benchmarking

1

Page 8Other Matters of Interest

CIPFA Updates

Grant Thornton Report

Key Performance Indicators

38

mailto:lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:emma.Bee@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:amanda.Hunt@lincolnshire.gov.uk


2

0
HIGH 

ASSURANCE

Key Messages 

Audit Plan

During the period we have completed two assurance audits and have 

four audits scheduled in.

The two audits which have been completed are:

• Good Governance Phase 1 and Decision Making - Substantial 

Assurance

• Risk Management - Substantial Assurance

The audits that we are working on:

• ICT Cyber Security (originally planned June/July and moved back at 

client’s request) – Commenced 30th August

• Programme Management – Commenced 5th September

• Housing Void Management – Commencing 3rd October

Health and Safety was scheduled to begin 19th September but has 

been deferred at the clients request due to unplanned staff absence. We 

are aiming to reschedule this work in October.

Note: The assurance expressed is at the time of issue of the report but before the full implementation of the agreed 

management action plan.  The definitions for each level are shown in Appendix 1. 

Introduction
The purpose of this report is to:

• Provide details of the audit work during the period  April 2022 to September 2022

• Advise on progress of the 2022/23 plan

• Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Audit Committee role

2
SUBSTANTIAL 

ASSURANCE

0
LIMITED 

ASSURANCE

0
LOW 

ASSURANCE

39



3

Substantial Assurance

Risk 

Management

A key indicator for good governance and assurance on the Council’s 

delivery for corporate aims, service delivery and project management is 

having effective risk management systems in place, taking into account the 

organisational risk appetite. Good Risk Management supports effective 

decision making and is a key part of both service delivery and achieving the 

Council’s strategic priorities. A systematic and consistent approach to risk 

management will help ensure a culture of 'no surprises' minimising the effect 

of threats.

Overall our review found that Risk Management is appropriately managed 

and that the related processes currently in place are operating effectively to 

reduce the impact of risk. This is supported through a number of areas of 

good practice including:

• A documented and Committee approved Risk Management Framework 

which covers the period 2021-2023. 

• A maintained Strategic Risk Register which contains key risks that could 

directly affect achievement of the Council’s strategic objectives. The 

strategic risks are reviewed biannually by Corporate Management Team 

(CMT) and Governance and Audit Committee. This ensures oversight and 

awareness of risks. 

• Article 11 of the Constitution for The Governance and Audit Committee 

lays out the governance for Risk Management. There is regular reporting to 

the Governance and Audit Committee with updates providing assurance on 

the effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements.

• Strategic risks and controls are tracked using software 4risk. This provides 

a real time picture of the risks and allows tracking of progress for risk 

actions. 

We identified some improvements to the process including work to further 

embed the discussion of Risk within Committee meetings, and to include 

Risk training as part of the induction process.

40



4

Substantial Assurance

Good 

Governance 

Phase 1 and 

Decision 

Making 

To achieve Good Governance, each Council should be able to demonstrate 

that its Governance structures comply with CIPFA 'Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government: Framework' – published in April 2016 

and the Governance Risk and Resilience Framework 2021. We conducted a 

high level review of the Governance framework in place at the Council 

through identification and gathering of key policies, strategies and 

processes, and discussion with key staff. 

It is clear from our work that the Council is in the process of making 

significant improvements in its Governance processes. We found that the 

Council’s governance and decision-making arrangements align with the 

CIPFA Good Governance Framework and Governance Risk and Resilience 

Framework. 

Our review is set in a period of development and improvement for the 

Council. While the Authority is still on a journey with further work to be done, 

it has been clearly demonstrated that progress has been made. There will 

be a period for the new arrangements to embed and the Council has action 

plans in place following the outcome of various other reviews.

Examples of good practice identified include:

• Use of the Local Government Association Model Councillor Code of 

Conduct

• Publication of key information to meet the requirements of the 

Transparency Code

• Consultation work with stakeholders including Community Governance 

Review for Grantham, Food Waste Trial and Deepings Leisure Centre

• Risk Management Framework with quarterly meeting of the risk 

management group and senior leadership

• The Constitution provides clarity over the Councils decision-making 

process with the flexibility to adjust work plans to address emerging 

issues.

We identified some areas where arrangements could be strengthened. 

These include the drafting and publication of key documents such as an IT 

strategy and a communications strategy, and the update of the public facing 

website to include the latest versions of its existing strategies, policies and 

frameworks. These will be followed up to ensure completion.

We propose to complete the second phase of the Governance review in 

2022/23. This will be a more comprehensive review to provide assurance on 

how the governance arrangements work in practice.

41



5

Audit reports at draft 

Work in Progress 

We have the following audits in progress :

• Cyber Security – Fieldwork stage

• Programme Management – Fieldwork stage

• Health and Safety – Initial meetings

• Housing Void Management – Initial meetings

Other Significant Work

The audit tracker report identified that there were 77 actions on the “4action” system due for 

completion by the 1st August 2022. These comprised of:

• 6 High Priority actions

• 33 Medium Priority actions

• 32 Low Priority actions

• 6 actions without a priority attached

We are referencing the 32 Low Priority actions to the Governance and Audit Committee but 

our focus will be on the High and Medium Priority findings. This is to ensure that the 

Committee is focused on the actions that matter, are more Business Critical, and have the 

greatest impact upon assurance.

Following review and discussions with Managers we identified that:

• 5 of the 6 High Priority actions had been completed (83%)

• 28 of the 33 Medium Priority actions had been completed (85%)

• 1 of the 6 actions with no priority had been completed (17%)

This information can be found in Appendix 3 along with an update on outstanding actions.

4 Audit in 

progress

0 Draft 

report

42



6

We will be working with Management to produce the Combined Assurance review. This 

report will build upon the Management Assurance Statement work currently in place, and will 

provide Members and Management with an overview of the Councils assurance across 

Critical Activities, Key Projects, Key Partnerships and Key Risks. This work will commence in 

October 2022 with the report to be presented at the March Committee. This will also support 

the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Governance Statement and the 2023/24 Audit Plan.

We have also undertaken some sessions to understand the Council as part of mobilising and 

commencing work. This includes: 

• Running an introduction workshop with key officers at the start of the contract to provide 

insight on the way in which we work

• Meeting the Statutory Officers Group to discuss the Combined Assurance approach and 

the Chair and Vice-Chair of Governance and Audit Committee

• Regular liaison with the Audit Lead within the Council to update on progress and identify 

any blockers to progress, as well as working with them on the audit action tracker system.

43



Benchmarking
Internal Audit's performance is measured against a range of indicators.  

The statistics below show our performance on key indicators year to 

date. 

Performance on Key Indicators

7

Plan 

completed:

30%

79%

62%

88%

Span
(Target
80%)

Draft
Issue

(Target
100%)

Final
Issue

(Target
100%)

2020/21

100% 100% 100%

Span
(Target
80%)

Draft Issue
(Target
100%)

Final Issue
(Target
100%)

44



Other Matters of Interest
A summary of matters that will be of particular interest to Audit 

Committee Members

8

CIPFA Position Statement on Audit Committees – published May 2022

CIPFA has updated their position statement for Audit Committees and replaces the 2018 

edition and sets out the vital role an Audit Committee plays in a Councils governance 

arrangements. It sets out key principles around:

• Independence and effective model

• Core functions

• Membership

• Engagement and outputs

• Impact 

CIPFA will be issuing an updated ‘Audit Committees – Practical Guide for Local Authorities 

and Police’ – due to be published in September 2022.

https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees

CIPFA - Internal Audit Untapped Potential – published May 2022

CIPFA advocates best practice in assurance, governance,

CIPFA advocates best practice in assurance, governance, management and financial control 

across the public services. Internal audit has the potential to help organisations achieve their 

goals, but this potential may not be currently realised. This report, and the research that has 

been conducted to create it, explores the changing landscape of internal audit in the public 

services and how vital it is for an organisation in terms of its future success.

CIPFA intention with this report is to open a dialogue across public service organisations, the 

internal audit profession, audit committees, as well as those considering a career in internal 

audit. Internal audit is an important part of the solution for effective management of the public 

services, and CIPFA hope to facilitate change that will see greater independence of internal 

audit, sustainability of recruitment into the role and an increased understanding of assurance.

This report makes several recommendations. Some are directed at the internal audit teams 

working within and for the public services. Others are directed at the client organisations, both 

management and audit committees. There are areas of planned work that CIPFA will be 

taking forward, some in collaboration with the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) 

and the Internal Audit Standards Advisory Board (IASAB).

We suggest that it would be good to explore the content of this report with the Audit 

Committee as part of its training and development plan – gaining greater insight into the Role 

and Impact of Internal Audit in the Council.

https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/internal-audit-

documentation/internal-audit-untapped-potential45

https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees
https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/internal-audit-documentation/internal-audit-untapped-potential


Other Matters of Interest
A summary of matters that will be of particular interest to Audit 

Committee Members

9

Croydon Council Governance Failing

Fairfield Hall is an arts, entertainment and conference centre situated in Croydon. 

Refurbishment of this building was agreed by Croydon Council and work was undertaken 

between June 2016 and September 2019. It was delivered late and cost substantially more 

than the original £30m budget agreed by cabinet. Originally a Value for Money review, this 

became a Report in the Public Interest by their Internal Auditors Grant Thornton which 

highlighted failings of financial control and governance of this project. 

The report found that the ‘governance gaps’ at the time ‘prevented scrutiny and challenge that 

may have allowed corrective action to have been taken.’ The report found that the statutory 

officers and chief officers throughout the time of the refurbishment, including the then chief 

executive, the two Section 151 officers and the then monitoring officer, failed to fulfil their 

statutory duties. All have since left the council. An action plan will be put in place to address 

the recommendations arising from this report.

This has led the Council putting in place new measures to address the findings. The Council 

has overhauled and strengthened its financial, legal, decision-making and other governance 

processes, and through its Croydon Renewal Plan is creating a new culture of good decision-

making, transparency, accountability and value for money.

It also led the council to undertake an external independent review of its companies and 

company structures. Following that review, the council’s intention is to wind down its 

development company Brick by Brick once it has completed its outstanding building work. 

The Fairfield Halls refurbishment contracts were taken back under direct Council control. 

The full report can be seen here:

Microsoft Word - London Borough of Croydon Public Interest Report FINAL 260122

46

https://www.croydon.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-01/London%20Borough%20of%20Croydon%20Public%20Interest%20Report%20Fairfield%20Halls%20260122.pdf


Appendix 1 Assurance Definitions

10

High
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level 

of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of 

risks, and the operation of controls and / or performance.  

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  

Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are 

operating effectively.

Substantial
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a 

substantial level of confidence (assurance) on service delivery 

arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls and / 

or performance.

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls 

to manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as 

adequate, appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the risk of the 

activity not achieving its objectives is medium to low.  

Limited 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a limited

level of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management 

of risks, and operation of controls and/or performance. 

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be 

operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are 

unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the 

risks are being managed effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will 

achieve its objectives.

Low

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant 

concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 

and operation of controls and / or performance.

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key 

risks or the controls have been evaluated as not adequate, 

appropriate or are not being effectively operated. Therefore the risk 

of the activity not achieving its objectives is high.

47



Appendix 2 Audit Tracker of Due Actions

11

Audit Actions

The audit tracker report identified that there were 77 actions on the “4action” system due for 

completion by the 1st August 2022. These comprised of:

• 6 High Priority actions

• 33 Medium Priority actions

• 32 Low Priority actions

• 6 actions without a priority attached

We are referencing the 32 Low Priority actions to the Governance and Audit Committee but our focus 

will be on the High and Medium Priority findings. This is to ensure that the Committee is focused on 

the actions that matter, are more Business Critical, and have the greatest impact upon assurance.

Following review and discussions with Managers we identified that:

• 5 of the 6 High Priority actions had been completed (83%)

• 28 of the 33 Medium Priority actions had been completed (85%)

• 1 of the 6 actions with no priority had been completed (17%)

We are recommending that Managers take a more pro-active approach of updating action progress 

and completion going forward as all have access to the system. This will ensure that ownership of 

actions becomes further embedded and delays can be identified at an earlier opportunity.

Please find below details of the outstanding actions along with reasoning as to why they are not fully 

complete along with a new proposed target date. These will be tracked in future progress reports.

Outstanding Actions   

Original due date

Current due date

Comments

Audit

Priority

Agreed Action

Owner

Original due date

Current due date

Comments

Audit Title Issued Assurance Total 

Recs

Recs imp Priority of 

overdue recs

Recs not 

due

Housing 

Compliance 

Oct 

2021

Partial 

Assurance

6 3 1 High

2 Medium

0

The High finding related to staff training. This was due to be completed 31/12/2021.

Due to level of vacancies and staff turnover, partial completion has been achieved through the delivery 

of significant training including Asbestos Awareness, MPL Locksmith training, CPC Training and Gas 

Safe acs-ccn1. This is in addition to regular toolbox talks.

The Medium findings relate to ensuring that data recorded on the Propeller system is up to date and 

accurate, and that this is reviewed by management. Both were due to be completed 31/12/2021.

This was due to be completed The Council has confidence where automatic API's load the data that the 

information is up to date and correct. With regards to EICR, Gas and Fire Actions they are utilising 

Propeller. Water Hygiene and Asbestos are currently managed externally to Propeller due to the lack of 

real time integration. Further work following the implementation of the Housing Management System 

shall be forthcoming around the Council's Asset Management systems

New completion date for these actions is 01/04/2023.

48



Appendix 2 Audit Tracker of Due Actions

12

Audit Title Issued Assurance Total 

Recs

Recs imp Priority of 

overdue recs

Recs not 

due

Follow up 3 GDPR Dec 

2021

N/A 8 3 5 with an N/A 

rating

0

The findings related to the review of the Information Asset Register (IAR), the allocation of staff to monitor 

and review data, and work around seeking and recording data consent. Four actions were due 

31/12/2021 and one was due 28/02/22.

Data champions have been identified across the Council and the first half of these were trained at the 

beginning of the year. We are currently looking at providing the second set of training to the other half in 

the near future. Once the training has been provided the first goal will be to populate the IAR and the 

data champions will then act as points of contact responsible for keeping the IAR accurate. Work will also 

be completed on the Retention Schedule. The IAR will be completed by 01/01/2023. Work will then 

commence on the consent process which will be completed 01/04/2023.

Legacy Actions Pre 

20/21

Jan 

2021

Good 

Progress

5 3 2 Medium 0

One action relates to development of a Communications Strategy. This had a completion date of 

30/06/22. This Strategy is at draft stage and requires consultation with the Portfolio Holder. The new 

action date is 31/10/22.

The other action relates to the CRM system and the periodic removal of data once the Data Disposal 

Module was implemented. This was due to be completed 31/12/21.

Revs & Bens have reviewed retention periods.  The data retention policy was amended in September 

2021 to reflect this – main retention changes for Housing Benefit, Council tax and NDR were:

• Live HB claims – retain all data relating to the claim regardless of LA DRP requirement

• Closed HB claim – retain all data relating to the claim for a minimum of three years plus the current year 

or in accordance with their own DRPs, whichever is the greater.

• Ctax and NDR – records to be retained to 1991

The work requires a significant amount of time which due to working on the £150 Council Tax Energy 

Rebate scheme has not been possible to commence. New date for completion is to be confirmed.

Rent Collection and 

Arrears

Feb 

2021

Reasonable 

Assurance 
2 1 1 Medium 0

The action required the South Kesteven District Council Fair Collection and Debt Recovery Policy be 

reviewed and updated. This was due 31/03/22.

Request made to move target date back due to impact of other workload within the service area -

resources and the direct implications on this policy (Cost of Living / Energy increases / Changes to 

Universal Credit). The new proposed completion date is 31/03/2023.

49



Appendix 3 2022/23 Audit Plan to date

13

Audit Scope of Work Start 
Planned 
Date 

Start 
Actual 
Date 

End 
Actual 
Date 

Progress 
and Rating 

Good 
Governance 
Phase 1 and 
Decision 
making 

To provide assurance that the 
Council has a robust Governance 
Framework in place that aligns to 
best practice (CIPFA / SOLACE 
‘Delivering good Governance in 
local government’ – issued 2016. 
Benchmarking against the 7 good 
governance principles and the 
principles and the Governance Risk 
Resilience Framework – issued by 
the Centre for Governance & 
Scrutiny – issued 2021.   
 

22/06/22 22/06//22 08/09/22 Substantial 
Assurance 

Risk 
Management 

To review the effectiveness of the 
risk management arrangements 
including: 

• Leadership & Management 

• Strategy and Policy 

• People – Risk Culture 

• Processes 

• Risk Handling & Assurance 

• Outcomes & Delivery 

• Using risk maturity model 

04/07/22 04/07/22 08/09/22 Substantial 
Assurance 

Cyber 
Security 

The National Cyber Security Centre 
(NCSC) has identified 10 steps for 
cyber security to help organisations 
manage cyber risks. The review will 
cover these 10 steps with a view to 
confirming that appropriate 
consideration has been given to 
these areas. 

30/08/22 
 

(deferred 
at Client 
request) 

30/08/22  Fieldwork 
stage 

Health and 
Safety 

To review the effectiveness of the 
Council’s health and safety 
arrangements including: 

• Governance & Oversight 

• Compliance 

• Processes  

• Risk Assessment and 
Assurance 

• Reporting and monitoring  

• Measuring performance 

19/09/22  
 

(deferred 
to 

October 
at Client 
request) 

  Initial 
meetings 

Housing Void 
Management 

Review of the governance and 
procedures in place to monitor, 
manage and report housing voids 

03/10/22   Initial 
meetings 

50



Appendix 3 2022/23 Audit Plan to date

14

Audit Scope of Work Start 
Planned 
Date 

Start 
Actual 
Date 

End 
Actual 
Date 

Progress and 
Rating 

Programme 
Management 

Review of the programme and 
project management procedures 
in place to provide management 
with assurance that a robust and 
consistent approach is being 
followed. This will be an advisory 
review. 

05/09/22 05/09/22  Fieldwork stage 

Housing 
Income 
Management 

Review of the governance and 
procedures in place to monitor, 
manage and report housing 
income 

January 
2023 

   

HRA Building 
Programme 

Assurance over the Housing 
Revenue Account building 
programme processes and 
procedures 

January 
2023 

   

Key Control 
Testing 

Delivery of key control testing to 
enable Head of Internal Audit to 
form an opinion on the Council’s 
financial control environment. 
Terms of Reference which include 
scope and focus on key risks will 
be determined with the 
appropriate senior manager. 

Jan/Feb 
2023 

   

Follow Ups To provide management with 
assurance that actions from 
previous key audits have been 
implemented and this has led to 
improved outcomes. 
 

As 
required 

   

      

      

 

51



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Governance and 
Audit Committee 
 

28 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Kelham Cooke, 
Leader of the Council 
 

 

 

Annual Health & Safety, Emergency Planning and 

Business Continuity Report 2021/22 
 

Report Author 

Philip Swinton Health and Safety Manager 

  phil.swinton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of Report 

 
This report presents the Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Annual 

Report 2021/22. It provides an overview of South Kesteven District Council’s management of 

health and safety arrangements to its customers, employees, and Members. It summarises the 

progress made and identifies key areas of focus to ensure the Council maintains its health and 

safety performance. 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee notes the attached Health and Safety Annual Report for the 
period 2021/22. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Members are reminded that the terms of reference for Governance and Audit 

Committee include the responsibility to review the annual report and assess the 

effectiveness of the Council’s health and safety arrangements. Risk management 

and health and safety are closely linked.  Control measures and preventative 

measures must be regularly reviewed to ensure they are operating effectively.   

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.1 The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (as amended) (“the Act”) along with 

supporting regulations, covers occupational health and safety in workplaces.  The 

Act sets out the Council’s duties in respect of its employees and those who may 

be affected by its work activities.  The annual review sets out an overview of the 

Council’s approach to health and safety issues. 

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.2 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 

included in this report. 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.4     Whilst Health and Safety requirements are necessary to manage risk, the Authority 

is mindful of its responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010. Therefore, due regard 

will be paid (where practicable) to any reasonable adjustments required by staff 

54



and Members in the delivery of their duties. No adjustment that would risk the 

safety of an employee, elected Member or contractor could be considered and 

therefore officers would work to ensure all suitable alternative options were 

explored to provide an equitable outcome for all. 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.5 Inadequate health and safety policies and processes would pose a direct link to 

employee’s mental health and wellbeing. There is therefore an important link 

between the two and it is ensured that the annual report and future health and 

safety actions align to the council’s wellbeing strategy.  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Health and Safety Annual report 2021/22 (attached at Appendix A) 

demonstrates that the Council’s health and safety performance has remained 

strong this period. It is important that the Council continues to review, monitor and 

improve, wherever practical, its arrangements and practices. Members will be 

aware that the Authority provides a varied range of services, some with inherently 

higher-risk activities and in challenging and changing environments. The report 

details these arrangements along with annual performance and sets out how the 

Council intends to move forward in the future. 

           The annual report shows the Council’s commitment to safety and the measures 

taken to protect the health and safety of all those who could be affected. There 

has been a reduction in the number of accidents from 2020/21 and this is detailed 

in the report. Whilst the focus is on reducing accidents, wherever possible, it is 

recognised that accidents are likely to happen in organisations of the size and  

nature of the Council and are broadly in line with neighbouring authorities 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and supporting regulations, including the   

Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999, require employers 

to ensure the Health and Safety of both employees and others who could be 

affected by the Councils acts or omissions and to have in place such 

arrangements to mitigate and control any residual risk. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 No other options. This report is provided to Members for their information on an 

annual basis. 

 

 

55



5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 Failure to manage health and safety may have a detrimental impact and any 

incidents could lead to people suffering from serious (avoidable) ill health and 

injury.  Also, legal actions may be taken against the Council in the event of any 

such incidents.  Legal actions can impose both financial and reputational risks to 

the Council. 

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1  This report invites comments from the Members of the Governance and Audit             

Committee. 

 

7. Appendices 
 

7.1 Appendix A – Annual Health and Safety Report 2021/22 

 

 

 

56



 

 

 

 

 

 

Health and Safety  

Annual Report 

2021–2022 

 
Philip Swinton 

Health, Safety and Compliance 

Manager 

 
South Kesteven District Council 

   September 2022 

57



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 1 of 14 
2021-2022   

 

 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

1.0 Executive Summary 2 

2.0 Business Continuity & Emergency Planning 3 

3.0 Health and Safety Training 4 

4.0 Accidents and Incidents 4 

5.0 Health and Safety Performance Measures 12 

6.0 Service Plan 2022 – 2023 13 

   

   

LIST OF TABLES, CHARTS & FIGURES 

 

Chart A Trend in Accidents by Service Area 7 

Table 1 Comparison by Accident Type 2020/21 – 2021/22 8 

Table 2 Comparison by Service Area 2020/21 – 2021/22 9 

Table 3 Riddor Summary of Accidents Reported 10 

Table 4 Health and Safety Target Performance Indicators 12 

Table 5 Leisure Centre Accident Rates (over 5 years) 11 

   

   

LIST OF APPENDICES 

 

Appendix 1 Exert from Quarterly Dashboard Overview & Status 12 

   

58



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 2 of 14 
2021-2022   

INTRODUCTION 

 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

This report provides an overview of South Kesteven District Council’s Health and Safety 

performance during the 2021/22 financial year. This report will also cover business continuity and 

emergency planning actions for the same financial period. 

 

The council’s health and safety performance overall in this period can be categorised as strong, with 

continued improvements across the authority and in particular within the identified higher risk areas. 

Despite the lifting of restrictions regarding Covid, the council has maintained a strong approach to 

the control and spread of the virus and has been able to continue to provide services without 

impacting the health or safety of staff, members, service users and residents. 

 

Accident numbers for the council remain consistent with previous years and have seen a further 

reduction in reported accident numbers and in accidents of a type reportable to the Health and 

Safety Executive (HSE) under Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences 

Regulations (RIDDOR). At the time of completing this report the HSE investigation for Riverside 

remains open and as a result no conclusion or actions can be reported on. The Council has 

approached the HSE for updates on the matter and while a report was expected earlier in the year 

this has not been made available as yet. 

 

Business continuity and emergency planning responsibilities have in the past 12 months been 

incorporated into the remit of Corporate Health and Safety. Both these areas have seen a sustained 

period of demand over the last two years. Prior to incorporation within this service area, they were 

continually tested during the height of the pandemic. While the performance during that period was 

of a high standard, some areas for improvement have been identified and enacted. These are 

detailed later in the report. 

 

1.1 The Health and Safety Management Approach 

 

As previously established, the direction for health and safety is set by Cabinet Members involvement 

in setting corporate priorities and insight of health and safety across the council’s activities, is 

welcomed and integral part to this process. The Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Senior 

Management Team (SMT) have overall responsibility for ensuring sufficient time and resources, 

making sure these are available to council officers to fulfil health and safety responsibilities and 

provide staff with any additional support.  Members and staff at every level carry a moral, legal, and 

financial obligation to adhere and actively support health and safety. 

 

1.2 Corporate Health and Safety Role  

 

The Corporate Health and Safety team’s role has grown since the last annual report. Its core 

function remains to provide support and advice to all staff and members of the council on matters of 

health, safety, and welfare and to provide and maintain safety policies along with a suite of 

corporate arrangements and guidance to improve understanding of safe practice and to provide 

internal checks and audits on safety related areas. In addition to this the role also now encompasses 

Housing compliance and will include working to improve Asbestos, Fire, Legionella, Gas and Radon 

safety. 

 

It is the responsibility of the Health and Safety team to monitor accidents and trends, ensuring 

investigations are prompt and appropriate.  Should it be required at any point the Health and Safety 

59



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 3 of 14 
2021-2022   

team will notify the HSE, or other relevant bodies of any reportable matters and coordinate the 

council’s cooperation and response. 

2.0 BUSINESS CONTINUITY & EMERGENCY PLANNING 

 

2.1 Business Continuity  

 

During the height of the pandemic it was identified that the council had excellent business continuity 

responses and was able to adapt to the situation with little or no service interruption. However, the 

plans and impact analysis held at service levels, which outline actions to take and how to manage 

the response, were not updated to include the lessons learned during this challenging time. This 

could have resulted in key information being lost as staff moved on from the authority and this gap in 

knowledge would have presented a risk to the management of future service interruptions. 

 

In order to manage this, the emergency plan and the service level business impact analysis have 

been reviewed and strengthened during the last 12 months; to capture this learning. In addition to 

this a number of sessions have been programmed to deliver business continuity awareness training 

to the senior team and other officers. 

 

In June of this year, an exercise to test business continuity plans was performed within Housing 

Services which simulated the loss of all information technology; with the increase in cyber-attacks, 

this is a risk being faced by every business. The response demonstrated that the service was able to 

continue to provide services with only small impacts, but also identified important improvements that 

are being implemented.  

 

2.2 Emergency Planning  

 

The emergency planning team of the Council has responded to several challenges over the last 12 

months. In addition to the Covid responses, they have attended both tactical and strategic 

coordination meetings with the Local Resilience Forum partners to provide information and best 

practice identified through shared learning to senior team. 

 

They have continued to provide the general “day-to-day” support such as flooding response and 

providing information and flood defence to parish councils and residents, as well as supporting 

emergency services when requested. 

 

The most significant challenge presented in this period was the work undertaken to support the 

Afghan Bridging Hotel that was established in Grantham in September 2021. With little notice, the 

team were called upon to support the process and facilitate the smooth running of the initial intake of 

guests and worked closely with emergency planning colleagues from LCC. The emergency planning 

team from South Kesteven then took the lead as on site liaison working with partners from other 

districts, The NHS, Department for Work and Pensions and the Home Office.  

 

The team maintained a daily presence for several weeks, this was beyond scale of anything 

previously required and at times very demanding, both physically and emotionally. The response 

provided by the EP team during this time was praised by all partner agencies on numerous 

occasions and should be recognised and commended. 

 

The experience and learning from this have increased the ability of SKDC to respond to future 

incidents and provide a real time test of procedures. As noted later in the report this has also 

highlighted a training opportunity which will be programmed for 2022/23. 

60



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 4 of 14 
2021-2022   

 

 

3.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY TRAINING 

 

Providing suitable training for employees is a legal requirement and essential to ensuring employees 

can work safely, this also provides management with a level of assurance that their teams are health 

and safety competent and confident in their roles. Employee training needs are identified in one-to-

ones, as well as previously defined training required for a particular role and risk assessments. 

 

The ability to provide a range of training options online has allowed the council to continue to meet 

its legal and moral obligations in these areas.  

 

To support the new hybrid style of working, the councils display screen equipment training (DSE) will 

be migrating to a new platform. This will provide enhanced information and advice for colleagues on 

working at numerous locations and advice will be tailored to the options selected by the individual 

and will ensure the most suitable workstation set up advice is available. This was planned for 

completion by July 2022. 

 

While the initial plan was to incorporate all online training in one platform, the learning management 

system (LMS) will not be able to support the creation of individual display screen equipment risk 

assessments, which is a requirement in the regulations. 

 

As with previous years, Corporate Health and Safety organised the following training during 

2021/22.  

 

• Health and Safety (induction for new employees); 

• Workstation Safety Plus (mandatory online training for all DSE users); 

• Fire Safety Awareness and Manual Handling to be provided through the new LMS; 

• Fire Warden (training needs for all council workplace premises); 

• First Aid at Work (3-days and 2-days refresher); 

• Conflict Resolution (training is provided as identified and required); 

• Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Awareness (training for those working with 

hazardous substances, i.e. cleaners); 

• Accident Investigation training (provided in house for those with responsibility to investigate) 

introduced in 2022; 

• Business Continuity training (provided in conjunction with LCC EP team) to the senior team and 

rolling out to team leaders.  

 

4.0 ACCIDENTS AND INCIDENTS 

 

Services are responsible for reporting, recording and investigating accidents and incidents that 

occur within their own service area and any involving the public.  In significant incidents, Corporate 

Health and Safety may assume the lead on the investigation. The council must identify the root 

cause of an incident and reduce the likelihood of reoccurrence.  All health and safety incidents must 

be submitted to the Corporate Health and Safety team, who oversee a central database and provide 

assurance to the council that suitable and sufficient investigations are taking place, proportionate to 

the level of incident. 

 

4.1 Accident and Incident Trends 

 

61



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 5 of 14 
2021-2022   

There was a total of 40 reported accidents in 2021/22, this is a reduction of nine on the previous 

year’s accidents. This reduction is welcomed and while a nil accident target remains unlikely; given 

the number of staff and activities the council undertakes; the reduction can only be taken as a 

positive. 

 

Manual handling and slip, trip or fall incident numbers remain constant and are usually the most 

common causes of accidents within SKDC, outside of vehicle related accidents. Controls and 

mitigations are in place in those areas with a higher likelihood of these incidents occurring, but even 

then, the council must accept that some incidents will occur. With over 200 staff working in roles that 

require a significant amount of manual handling and work outside of an office environment, this is 

not unexpected. 

 

Incidents of this nature often involve an element of human behavioural failure. Prompt and thorough 

investigation of incidents is crucial to identifying not only opportunities to strengthen existing 

measures, but to highlight behavioural trends which may be contributing to incident rates. 

 

The incident at Riverside involving council contractors and Asbestos Containing Materials (ACM) 

remains open and HSE investigations are ongoing.  

 

4.2 Accident and Incident Numbers and Charts 

 

Chart A shows the number of reported accidents/incidents over the last three years for internal 

council work - related activities and in most areas, there is a clear reduction.  

 

The council’s accident numbers have been broadly consistent since 2015/16 and have shown a 

downward trend. While previous concerns have been raised regarding reporting and accuracy, this 

continued consistence should provide some assurance that figures are accurate and moving in the 

direction that we would expect with a growing positive health and safety culture. 

 

With the move to agile/home working there remains a possibility that accidents have occurred in the 

home, but have not been reported, as the link to this being an accident at work was not recognised.  

Accident reporting has been simplified in the last 12 months and additional training for investigation 

of incidents and causes has been developed and is being provided by Corporate Health and Safety 

to support those with reporting responsibility. It should be noted that there has been an overall 

improvement in the quality of reports being received, but it is key that officers are allowed the time to 

investigate accidents properly.  A thorough investigation will not only help prevent future incidents 

but will save officer time and council resources from unnecessary wastage. 

 

The most notable absence within SKDC accident figures, is that of near miss reporting. There have 

been no near miss reports in the last two years and although possible, it is unlikely this is an 

accurate reflection of the position. The Corporate Health and Safety team have continued to instil 

the importance of this type of incident information and CMT have supported by driving this message 

through their teams. The new investigation training further reinforces the importance of this type of 

reporting. Ultimately SKDC can only act on the information it receives and continue to push this 

message with all officers. 

 

Street Scene has seen a reduction in accidents numbers from 39 to 34. This is a 13% reduction on 

the previous year. This service areas accident numbers still account for the majority of incidents and 

in total it is 85% of all recorded accidents in SKDC.  

 

62



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 6 of 14 
2021-2022   

The area operates over 120 staff and a fleet in excess of 30 vehicles on any given day and at least 

five days a week, so this number while high, is not unexpected. 

 

Vehicle incidents within Street Scene are down slightly on last year and all but one incident was of a 

type that would be described as a significant incident. This is not to down grade the potential of 

vehicle incidents and the council should always strive for reductions in all types, but as previously 

reported, the majority are made of minor scrapes and wing mirror damage. This is quite often the 

result of operating in very busy and confined roads during collection activities. 

 

The significant incident was investigated by Corporate Health and Safety and a number of actions 

have been implemented to remove the likelihood of reoccurrence. 

 

Table 2 provides a breakdown by service area and type of accident for the periods 2020/21 and 

2021/22. Accidents have fallen across the board, but despite the fall in vehicle incidents they still 

account for almost half of all council accidents and carry with them the potential for repair, insurance 

and third party claim costs. This must remain an area of focus for the council and all measures 

should be taken to continue to reduce these. 

 

Regardless of the context, the council, its officers and members have a legal, moral and financial 

responsibility to constantly review all its activities and procedures and to drive safety improvements 

wherever practical. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 7 of 14 
2021-2022   

 
 

CHART A - This chart shows the accident numbers by service areas over the last 3-years. 

64



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 8 of 14 
2021-2022   

CATEGORY 2020/21 
% OF 

TOTAL 
2021/22 

% OF 

TOTAL 

Bruising/Grazing 1 0.02 0 0 

Cuts/Lacerations 2 0.04 0 0 

Contact with moving machinery 0 0 2 0.05 

Falls from height 0 0 2 0.05 

Injured while handling an object 0 0 5 0.13 

Manual Handling 6 0.12 3 0.08 

Needlestick 0 0 2 0.05 

Neurological (Epileptic fit) 0 0 1 0.03 

Slips/Trips/Falls 11 0.25 4 0.10 

Sprains/Strains 6 0.12 0 0 

Struck Against 0 0 1 0.03 

Unacceptable Behaviour 1 0.02 1 0.03 

Vehicle Accidents/Incidents 22 0.45 19 0.47 

TOTALS 49   40  

TABLE 1 - Comparison by Accident Type 2020/21 - 2021/22   

 

 

65



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 9 of 14 
2021-2022   

CATEGORY 

ARTS CENTRE 
CORPORATE 
OPERATIONS 

ENVIRONMENTAL HOUSING 
LEGAL & 

DEMOCRATIC 
REPAIRS STREET SCENE TOTAL 

 2020/21  2021/22  2020/21  2021/22  2020/21  2021/22  2020/21  2021/22 2020/21  2021/22  2020/21  2021/22  2020/21  2021/22  2020/21 2021/22 

Bruising/Grazing           1               1  

Cuts/Lacerations                    2  2  

Contact with moving 
machinery 

             2  2 

Fall from height              2  2 

Injured while handling 
an object 

           1  4  5 

Manual Handling                  2  4 3 6 3 

Needlestick              2  2 

Neurological              1  1 

Slips/Trips/Falls          2 1  1    1 9 1 11 4 

Sprains/Strains                   3  3  6  

Struck Against              1  1 

Unacceptable 
Behaviour 

      1                1   1 1 

Vehicle Accidents / 
Incidents  

    2 1              21 17 22 19 

TOTAL 0 0 0 2 2 0 3 1 0 1 5 2 39 34 49 40 

TABLE 2 - Comparison by Service Area 2020/21 - 2021/22  

  

66



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 10 of 14 
2021-2022   

4.4.3 Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations (RIDDOR) 

 

RIDDOR regulations require certain specified accidents, ill health and dangerous occurrences to be 

reported to the relevant enforcing authority, being the HSE.  

  

The council last year had five reportable incidents. This financial year the council reported as detailed 

below. Both were reportable due to a clear seven day or more incapacitation however, the first incident 

was also classified as a specified injury as it resulted in a fracture to the individual.  Neither have 

resulted in further action or contact.  

 

RIDDOR (Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations) 

 

SECTION ACCIDENT  REPORTED 

TRIGGER  

(Over 7 days 

or specified 

injury) 
 

PERSON 

EXPOSED 
DESCRIPTION OF INJURY 

HAZARD 

TYPE 

Legal and 

Democratic 
29-04-2021 10-05-2021 Specified injury Employee 

Tripped while moving around 

desk, fractured wrist and scaphoid 

bone. 

Slip/Trip/Fall 

Street Scene: 

Commercial 

Waste 

09-07-2021 14-07-2021 
Over 7 day 

absence 
Employee 

Pulled shoulder - Rotator Cuff 

damage - Moving 1100 LTR bin 

Injured while 

handling an 

object 

 

TABLE 3 – RIDDOR Summary of Accidents Reported 
 

 

4.4 Leisure Centres 

 

Table 5 shows the number of incidents at each leisure centre, along with the number of visitors and 

overall accident rates. 

 

Previous years have shown a consistently low accident rate across the four sites (Deepings remains 

closed at this time) in last years report this was predicted to continue once reopening was permitted 

and based on the current figures from the three open sites, this can be taken as accurate. 

 

Although there is little difference in the location accident rates, the sites of Bourne and Deeping have 

always had the higher accident rates and have been between 0.05 and 0.07 for the last four years 

with data. Without greater investigation this report is unable to provide a conclusive reason for this 

difference, although age and condition of the buildings and activities operated at the site would likely 

feature in the reasons. 

 

67



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 11 of 14 
2021-2022   

 

 

TABLE 5 : Leisure Centre Accident Rates (over 5 years) 

 

Footfall per Incident 2021 - 2022  Footfall per Incident 2020 - 2021  Footfall per Incident 2019 - 2020 

Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% 
Rates 

 Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% 
Rates 

 Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% 
Rates 

Bourne 120,769 70 1725 0.06  Bourne  

Closed because of Covid-19 
(No figures) 

 Bourne 176,591 100 1766 0.06 

Stamford 62,779 14 4484 0.02  Deepings  
 Deepings 251,485 92 2734 0.04 

Grantham 289,675 71 4080 0.02  Stamford   Stamford 142,577 50 2852 0.04 

        Grantham   Grantham 598,569 138 4337 0.02 

                       

Total 473223 155 3053 0.03  Total 0 0 0 0.00  Total 1169222 380 3077 0.03 

                 

Footfall per Incident 2018 - 2019  Footfall per Incident 2017 - 2018   

Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% 
Rates 

 Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% 
Rates 

      

Bourne 191,518 128 1496 0.07  Bourne 182,871 84 2177 0.05       

Deepings 283,782 174 1631 0.06  Deepings 282,721 198 1428 0.07       

Stamford 159,632 71 2248 0.04  Stamford 156,164 53 2946 0.03       

Grantham 663,732 100 6637 0.02  Grantham 668,745 158 4233 0.02       

                     

Total 1298664 473 2746 0.04  Total 1290501 493 2618 0.04       

68



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 12 of 14 
2021-2022   

 

5.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

 

Along with the measures below, a quarterly dashboard of performance indicators as in Appendix 2, 

is shared with CMT and Heads of Service and covers accidents and incidents, quarterly monitoring 

activities and any trends identified or areas which require increased focus, as in Appendix 1. 

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY TARGET/PERFORMANCE 

INDICATOR 
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Staff attendance at Corporate Health and Safety induction 100% 100% 
100% 

Virtual 

Number of staff RIDDOR notifications to the enforcing 

authority 
19 5 2 

Number of staff lost days as the result of accidents (based 

upon information received) 
184.5 250 169 

 

TABLE 4 - Target Performance Indicators 

 

 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 – Exert from Quarterly Dashboard 

 

 

 

69



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 13 of 14 
2021-2022   

6.0 SERVICE PLAN 2022-2023 

 

6.1 Health and Safety Plan 

 

The Health and Safety action plan remains a constant in that it will continue to provide support and 

professional advice to all areas of the council and provide training such as the accident investigation 

training as required. It will continue to maintain and grow the corporate suite of information, 

arrangements and policies in order to develop the safety culture and reduce risk so far as 

practicable. 

 

In order to improve the access of safety information and to support service areas in storing, 

recording and timely updating of risk assessments or safe systems the Health and Safety team will 

review options for the provision of a safety management system and provide feedback to CMT on 

the possible solutions. 

 

All of the outstanding risk audits noted in last year’s report for service level assessments, have now 

been completed. 

 

It is recommended that the identified high risk service areas remain on an annual review program, to 

be undertaken by Corporate Health and Safety, in addition to any externally provided reviews which 

may be commissioned. 

 

Lower risk areas i.e. predominantly office based service areas, should move to every two years for 

review by the Health and Safety team. This recommendation is based on the low risk nature of the 

work and the very low frequency of accidents and incidents within these areas. 

 

The creation of risk assessments and the identification and mitigation of risk is a legal requirement 

and remains integral to the prevention of injury or accidents and the preservation of health. Should 

information or accident trends suggest the need for this to be reversed, it can be enacted with little 

notice. 

  

6.2 Business Continuity and Emergency Planning 

 

As noted, the overarching business continuity plans for the council have recently been reviewed, as 

have the service level impact analysis assessments. It is anticipated that there will be some changes 

this year to the responsibilities and levels of competence required by authorities like SKDC as a 

Category 1 responder and once these are made available to the team the plans will be reviewed and 

updated as required. 

 

The team will continue to work closely in partnership with our LCC emergency planning colleagues, 

to strengthen the ability to respond to business risk and events. This will ensure that service 

provision remains strong during any event with the potential to cause loss or interruption of services. 

 

Additional training sessions will be provided to officers in the authority to improve understanding and 

awareness of the critical role this forward planning plays in maintaining our services to the public. 

The exercise performed within the Housing service area will be extended to other service areas over 

the coming year and will focus on those areas identified as critical in the council’s plan.  

70



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 14 of 14 
2021-2022   

Business continuity plans should remain an annual review as a minimum or following a significant 

event or incident of business interruption. The team will undertake audits of service area 

assessments based on this annual target. The exercising of business continuity plans will be 

expanded and will initially focus on those services identified as high risk / critical services. 

 

As well as training in business continuity, members of the senior team and on call officers will be 

attending refresher courses in both tactical and strategic coordination of emergency events and gold 

commander training. 

 

The council already operates a strong on call response, which has been repeatedly tested over the 

last 12 months and this increase in training will provide greater resilience. With more officers able to 

respond to and take effective control of emergency incidents, or act as liaison with partner agencies 

to support and protect residents of SKDC; this will allow the council to continue to meet its moral 

obligations, as well as those placed upon us in the Civil Contingency Act. 

 

71



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Governance and 
Audit Committee  
 
 

28 September 2022 
 
Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Governance and 
Licensing  
 

 

 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

– Annual Review Letter 2022 
 

Report Author 

Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

  Graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To report the content of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s Annual 

Review Letter for 2022. 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee notes the content of the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman’s Annual Review Letter for 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no specific finance or procurement implications arising from this report. 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no specific legal and governance implications arising from this report. 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman is responsible for 

investigating complaints about Councils, all adult social care providers and some 

other organisations providing local public services. 

 

2.2 The Ombudsman would expect a complainant to have gone through all of the 

stages of an organisation’s own complaints process before receiving a complaint 

on any matter. 

 

2.3 Any complaint to the Ombudsman must be about something it has authority to 

investigate and in most cases a complainant should: 

 

• Complain to the Ombudsman within 12 months of becoming aware of the 

matter 

• Have been directly affected by the matter and suffered a ‘personal injustice’ 

 

2.4 This report sets out the content of the Ombudsman’s Annual Review Letter for 

2022 for South Kesteven District Council. 

74



3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s Annual Review Letter 

covers a twelve-month period up to 31 March 2022.  

 

3.2 The Annual Review Letter focuses on three key areas that help to assess the 

Council’s commitment to put things right when they go wrong. These are: 

 

• Complaints upheld 

• Compliance with recommendations 

• Satisfactory remedy provided by the Authority  

 

3.3 Fifteen complaints were considered by the Ombudsman during the period of the 

Annual Review Letter, broken down into the following areas: 

 

• Planning and Development – 8 complaints 

• Corporate/Other Services – 2 complaints 

• Environmental Services and Public Protection and Regulation – 2 complaints 

• Benefits and Tax – 1 complaint 

• Highways and Transport – 1 complaint 

• Housing – 1 complaint 

 

3.4 Of these fifteen complaints, the Annual Review Letter reports that for South 

Kesteven District Council: 

 

• The Ombudsman carried out no detailed investigations during the period 

• No recommendations were due for compliance in this period 

• The Ombudsman did not uphold any detailed investigations during this period 

 

3.5 Further statistical information for South Kesteven District Council and comparisons 

with other Local Authorities can be viewed via the following link: 

 

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance 

 

3.6 A copy of the Annual Review Letter as attached at Appendix A to this report. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 No other options are considered other than to note the report. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 The report is for noting. 

 

 

75

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance


6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix A - The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s Annual 

Review Letter 2022 

 

 

 

76



 

 

 

 

20 July 2022 
 
By email 
 
Ms Bradford 
Chief Executive 
South Kesteven District Council 
 
 
Dear Ms Bradford 
 
Annual Review letter 2022 
 
I write to you with your annual summary of complaint statistics from the Local Government and 

Social Care Ombudsman for the year ending 31 March 2022. The information offers valuable 

insight about your organisation’s approach to complaints. As such, I have sought to share this 

letter with the Leader of your Council and Chair of the appropriate Scrutiny Committee, to 

encourage effective ownership and oversight of complaint outcomes, which offer such valuable 

opportunities to learn and improve.  

Complaint statistics 

Our statistics focus on three key areas that help to assess your organisation’s commitment to 

putting things right when they go wrong: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find fault in an organisation’s actions, 

including where the organisation accepted fault before we investigated. We include the total 

number of investigations completed to provide important context for the statistic. 

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for organisations to put things right 

when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations. 

Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.  

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the organisation upheld the 

complaint and we agreed with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early resolution 

of complaints and credit organisations that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put things 

right.  

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your organisation with similar authorities to 

provide an average marker of performance. We do this for County Councils, District Councils, 

Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

77



Your annual data, and a copy of this letter, will be uploaded to our interactive map,                   

Your council’s performance, on 27 July 2022. This useful tool places all our data and information 

about councils in one place. You can find the detail of the decisions we have made about your 

Council, read the public reports we have issued, and view the service improvements your Council 

has agreed to make as a result of our investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.  

Supporting complaint and service improvement 

I know your organisation, like ours, will have been through a period of adaptation as the 

restrictions imposed by the pandemic lifted. While some pre-pandemic practices returned, many 

new ways of working are here to stay. It is my continued view that complaint functions have been 

under-resourced in recent years, a trend only exacerbated by the challenges of the pandemic. 

Through the lens of this recent upheaval and adjustment, I urge you to consider how your 

organisation prioritises complaints, particularly in terms of capacity and visibility. Properly 

resourced complaint functions that are well-connected and valued by service areas, management 

teams and elected members are capable of providing valuable insight about an organisation’s 

performance, detecting early warning signs of problems and offering opportunities to improve 

service delivery. 

I want to support your organisation to harness the value of complaints and we continue to develop 

our programme of support. Significantly, we are working in partnership with the Housing 

Ombudsman Service to develop a joint complaint handling code. We are aiming to consolidate our 

approaches and therefore simplify guidance to enable organisations to provide an effective, quality 

response to each and every complaint. We will keep you informed as this work develops, and 

expect that, once launched, we will assess your compliance with the code during our 

investigations and report your performance via this letter. 

An already established tool we have for supporting improvements in local complaint handling is 

our successful training programme. We adapted our courses during the Covid-19 pandemic to an 

online format and successfully delivered 122 online workshops during the year, reaching more 

than 1,600 people. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

78

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


South Kesteven District Council 

For the period ending: 31/03/22  

                                                             

 

 

 

 

Complaints upheld 

 

The Ombudsman carried out no detailed investigations during this period 

 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

 

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period 

 

 

Satisfactory remedy provided by the organisation 

 

The Ombudsman did not uphold any detailed investigations during this period 

 

 

79



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Governance and 
Audit Committee  
 
 

28 September 2022 
 
Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Governance and 
Licensing  
 

 

 

Short Scrutiny Improvement Review – Centre for 

Governance and Scrutiny  
 

Report Author 

Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

  Graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide the Governance and Audit Committee with an update on the content of the 

short scrutiny improvement review carried out by the Centre for Governance and 

Scrutiny, together with an action plan which addresses the recommendations included as 

part of the feedback letter. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee endorses the Scrutiny Improvement Review Action Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

81

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no specific financial and procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no specific legal and governance implications not already referred to in 

the body of the report. 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  In 2021 the Council commissioned the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny to 

undertake an evaluation of its scrutiny function to check and test that scrutiny 

arrangements met the Council’s high expectations of democratic accountability 

and that decision-making and overview and scrutiny was transparent, effective 

and impactful. 

 

2.2 The review was conducted by Jacqui McKinlay (Chief Executive) and Ian Parry 

(Head of Consultancy) at the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny and consisted 

of two days of evidence gathering on-site through conversations with Members 

and Officers on 19 and 20 July 2021, as well as consideration of key documents 

and the observation of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.  

 

 

 

 

82



3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 As part of the evidence gathering process, the review panel met with Members 

and Officers including the Leader of the Council, Cabinet Members, Group 

Leaders, Chairmen and Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committees, as well 

as members of the Council’s Corporate Management Team, Senior Leadership 

Team and Democratic Services Team. 

 

3.2 The opening summary of findings from the review highlighted conditions for 

successful scrutiny are present at South Kesteven District Council with a clear 

commitment to scrutiny and the value it can bring, the benefits of which are 

recognised by Cabinet. The dedication of Members of Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees, positive examples of cross-party working, making a positive impact 

and wanting to improve outcomes was also emphasised.  

 

3.3 Reference was made to the significant changes at the Council following new 

political and managerial leadership, the political composition and a number of 

service area reviews taking place or having been recently completed, alongside 

the Council’s response to the pandemic and its focus on recovery. It was 

recognised, therefore, at the time of the review, that the Council was clearly in a 

period of transition. 

 

3.4 The outcomes of the review were reported under the following themes, some of 

which included recommendations for further consideration which the Panel feel 

will assist scrutiny in being more effective in how it works and the contribution it 

makes: 

 

• Conditions for success  

•  Organisation and Officer support 

• Clarity and scrutiny’s role and responsibilities  

• Collaborative approach to scrutiny 

• Scrutiny’s focus and work programme 

• Committee structure 

• Chairing and meeting preparation 

• Member development 

• External engagement  

 

3.5 A copy of the review findings is attached to the report at Appendix A. 

 

3.6 In considering the recommendations of the review, an action plan has been 

developed by the Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing. This 

is appended to the report at Appendix B. 

 

3.7 The Governance and Audit Committee is invited to consider the content of the 

findings of the review, together with the action plan. 

 

83



4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 The Governance and Audit Committee could recommend additions to, deletions 

from or amendments to the action plan. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 The action plan seeks to address the recommendations of the Centre for 

Governance and Scrutiny following its short scrutiny improvement review. 

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 All Members of the Council were provided with a copy of the feedback letter from 

the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny upon its receipt. 

 

6.2 No further consultation has been undertaken. 

 

7. Appendices 
 

7.1 Appendix A – Centre for Governance and Scrutiny feedback letter  

 

7.2 Appendix B – Scrutiny Review Action Plan 

 

84



 

 

 

 

 

 
Alan Robinson  
Deputy Chief Executive 
South Kesteven District Council  

August 2021 

 

Dear Alan  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Short Scrutiny Improvement Review – CfGS consultancy support 

I am writing to thank you for inviting the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) to carry out an 
evaluation of the Council’s scrutiny function. This letter provides feedback on our review findings 
and offers suggestions on how the Council could develop its scrutiny process.  

As part of this feedback stage, we would like to facilitate a workshop with Members and Officers to 
reflect on this review and to discuss options for improvement. We also understand that this report 
and findings will form part of the governance and constitution review currently underway.  

 

Background
 
South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) commissioned CfGS to advise and support its Members 
and officers in the review of the Council’s scrutiny function to ensure that it is effective in providing 
a quality contribution in accountability, policy and decision making, delivery of Council plans and 
overall improvement. 
 
The Council has not undertaken a comprehensive review of its scrutiny arrangements for some 
time and wanted to check and test that scrutiny arrangements meet the Council’s high 
expectations of democratic accountability and that decision-making and overview and scrutiny is 
transparent, effective and impactful.  
 
Its aspiration is to make its ongoing approach to scrutiny fresh, innovative and bold and that its 
overview and scrutiny structure creates the right framework to maximise its impact within its 
governance arrangements.  
 
CfGS undertook a review of the current scrutiny arrangements, involving two days of evidence 
gathering onsite through conversations with Members and Officers on 19th and 20th July 2021. In 
addition, we observed a scrutiny meeting and reviewed key documents.  
 
CfGS met with elected Members and officers, including the Council Leader and Cabinet Members, 
Group Leaders, Scrutiny Chairs, Members of the Scrutiny Panels, Members of the Council’s senior 
leadership team as well, as member support and governance officers.  
 
 
 
 
 

85



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

The review was conducted by: 
 

• Jacqui McKinlay – Chief Executive, Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 

• Ian Parry – Head of Consultancy, Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 

The findings and recommendations presented in this letter are intended to advise SKDC in 
strengthening the quality of scrutiny activities, increasing the impact of its outputs, and through its  
Members, to develop a strong and shared understanding of the role and capability of the scrutiny 
function. 
 
 

Summary of findings 
 
1. Scrutiny has the conditions for success 
 
The conditions for successful scrutiny are present at SKDC; there is a clear commitment to scrutiny 
and the value that it can bring from the political and officer leadership, there is support from senior 
officers and the governance team, Cabinet recognises the benefits scrutiny can bring and Scrutiny 
Members dedicate time to the role and want to improve outcomes.   

Scrutiny Members could reference examples where scrutiny had made a positive impact and 
enjoyed taking part in task groups. Members referenced the climate change working group as a 
recent example of good cross-party working and positive outcomes.   

The majority of those interviewed believed that improvements are needed to make scrutiny more 
effective and give greater value.  
 
There have been significant changes at SKDC including new political and officer leadership, the 
political composition, reviews of service provision including housing and the arts, a governance 
review, new governance team members and a new corporate plan. This has happened alongside 
the Council’s response to the pandemic and focus on recovery. As a result the Council is clearly in 
a period of transition as these changes embed.  
 
From a scrutiny perspective, the new plan and leadership commitment to being open to challenge 
provides an excellent opportunity to add value through its involvement in policy-making and holding 
to account. Our findings recommendations will assist scrutiny in being more effective in how it 
works and the contribution its makes.  
 
 
2. Organisation and Officer support 
 
It is clear that the Council’s Chief Executive and corporate management team is committed to 
supporting scrutiny.  
 
The recent changes at a director level have impacted on the way that scrutiny works, alongside the 
absence of ‘in person’ meetings. There has also been significant staff turnover in the democratic 
services team leading to a gap in support. Members were positive about the support they received 
from Member Services and were complimentary about the quality and responsiveness of officer 
support and are looking forward to the new team members starting. 
 
 

86



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
With the senior leadership and democratic services team now in place, there is an excellent 
opportunity to strengthen productive working relationships, formal and informal, between the 
Scrutiny Chair, Cabinet Member, Director and democratic services. 
 
 
3. Clarity on scrutiny’s role and responsibilities 

Scrutiny’s overall role is to hold the Cabinet to account, to carry out policy development, contribute 
to improved decision-making, and channel the voice of the public.  

Generally, Members were able to articulate the purpose and contribution that scrutiny should be 
making, although there is more that could be done to ensure a consistent understanding of the 
benefits and value that scrutiny can bring.  

In practice however challenge is not as robust as it could be, particularly from Members of the 
administration, and some Members felt and had evidence to show that scrutiny was not always a 
safe, politically neutral space, where robust challenge was welcomed and encouraged.  

We would recommend:   

• Further reinforcement of the role, purpose and value of scrutiny and there would be 
value in developing a protocol of working between the Cabinet and Scrutiny to 
provide clarity of scrutiny’s purpose at SKDC. This could be achieved through 
training or direct engagement with committees.  
 

• The planned changes to the way the organisation works provides an opportunity for 
scrutiny to be involved earlier in policy development and decision-making, as well as 
holding to account. Scrutiny could add significant value if it focused more on early 
scrutiny of policy development or on pre-scrutiny of key decisions. To be effective in 
doing this it needs to operate early in the cycle and to create a positive (but 
constructively challenging) working relationship with political decision-makers. It 
also means that scrutiny spends more time looking forward towards the future, 
rather than in reviewing and monitoring past performance (although some of this is 
also necessary). This pre-scrutiny work also needs to be reflected in the work 
programme and agenda planning.  
 

4. Collaborative approach to scrutiny 
 
Scrutiny is meant to be a forum for the evidence-based discussion of issues affecting local people.  

Most agreed with the principle that scrutiny is more effective when each committee works together 
with politics left at the door (as much as is practicably possible) and an equal voice is given to all. 

COVID restrictions have impacted on how committees work together but there was little evidence 
of committees working together to agree areas of focus, questioning strategies or reviewing their 
impact post-meeting.  

There is also a mixed level of engagement, with Members of the opposition tending to show 
greater levels of involvement within committee meetings. Effective challenge from all Members of 
scrutiny and an active opposition are healthy governance behaviours in any democratic body.  

 

87



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

There were examples of regular communication and information sharing between the Scrutiny 

Chair, Cabinet lead and Director, but this could be improved.  

 

We heard that Cabinet Members are engaged and regularly attend meetings, there is however 

currently no regular scrutiny of the Leader at any of the committees. This was recognised as a gap  

and the Leader and Scrutiny are keen to rectify this position with a focus on integrated finance, 

performance and delivery.  

 
There is work to be done to establish parity of esteem between Scrutiny Chairs and Cabinet and 
create the safe space for effective scrutiny and challenge to happen, and the benefits this will bring 
to in terms of better decisions.  
 
We would recommend:  
 

• SKDC develop a Cabinet-Scrutiny protocol to outline and reaffirm roles and 
responsibilities, dealing with the with the practical workings of scrutiny as well as 
the cultural dynamics included expected behaviours, access to information, etc.  
 

• That a positive opportunity for scrutiny to hold the Leader and Deputy Leader to 
account forms a regular part of the work programme. The Leader already attends 
scrutiny as required or invited and has indicated a preference to engage more and be 
visibly accountable to scrutiny for overall council progress. Therefore, a quarterly 
Leader/Deputy accountability session could provide an opportunity to hold the 
Leader/Deputy to account for progress on the delivery of an Integrated Corporate 
Plan and Budget Report and any other issues scrutiny feels is important.  
 

 
5. Scrutiny’s focus and work programme  
 
There is a recognition that scrutiny needs to focus more on strategic issues, where it can have 
influence, and that scrutiny should input into the decision-making process at an earlier stage than it 
does currently.  
 
With a new corporate plan, there is an opportunity for scrutiny to add value and to be an integral 
part of the Council’s improvement. For the majority of the substantive items on scrutiny agendas 
there is not a clearly articulated outcome from scrutiny’s consideration of the topic. When topics 
are reviewed the focus tends to be operational rather than strategic or outcome focused.  
 
For scrutiny to be more strategic there needs to be change from both Scrutiny and the Cabinet. If 
the Council wants more emphasis on shaping policy, challenging and holding to account, then 
scrutiny will need earlier access to and involvement with the core policy and decision-making 
activities of Cabinet.  
 
Work programming across the Committees tends to be driven by the Cabinet agenda and there is 
an opportunity with the new plan to consider how each Committee can contribute to influencing the 
policy, generating ideas and providing effective oversight and challenge. 

 
We also noted that scrutiny could be more involved in the budget process, and at an earlier stage 
for any meaningful input. Scrutinising the Council’s finances, including the medium-term financial  

88



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

plan, monitoring financial and operational performance, together with commercial partnerships and 
other external arrangements does not seem to be sufficiently explored.  
 
We have produced guidance, in partnership with CIPFA, on financial scrutiny1 setting out scrutiny 
activity to complement the Council’s annual financial cycle. The guide suggests ways to move 
budget and finance scrutiny beyond set-piece scrutiny ‘events’ in December and quarterly financial 
performance scorecards being reported to committee. 
 
We would recommend:  
 

▪ An annual process for developing the work programme across all of the scrutiny 
committees, engaging Members, Officers, partners and the public to prioritise the 
topics for review. This could involve a member’ workshop, where a shortlist of 
priority topics for the next 12 months are identified according to a selection criteria, 
discussed on their merit for scrutiny, and voted on.  
 

▪ A review of the current approach to financial scrutiny (across all the committees) 
and MTFS/ budget scrutiny and the scrutiny of commercial arrangements and to 
ensure lessons from other council’s recent experiences have been applied. 

 

6. Committee structure  
 
Changing the structure of scrutiny committees is rarely a universal solution to bring about 
immediate changes, the cultural issues are more important. However, we received feedback from 
the majority of people that the current structure of five scrutiny committees for a council the size of 
SKDC is not the most effective use of resources and is creating confusion. 
 
There are too many committees which leads to overlap and take significant resource to support. 
There is limited evidence that this current approach is adding value or making an impact.  
 
We also noted that the Council’s four teckal companies have unclear scrutiny arrangements which 
could present Members with significant governance challenges to test and reassure their value, 
risk, performance and benefit. There is no suggestion that the Companies Committee, whose role 
is to oversee these activities is in any way deficient, but that a scrutiny ‘check and balance’ may 
strengthen governance arrangements. 
 
We would recommend:  
 

• SKDC to consider a new model which either consists of an overarching committee 
with standing committees reporting to it or two committees, one with an internal and 
the other an external focus. There is also scope within a revised model to create task 
and finish groups or other flexible scrutiny capacity. 

• We can advise that other similar size councils also operate with either a single 
scrutiny committee or two (internal focus and external focus) committees; These 
include: 

 

 
1 CfGS & CIPFA (2020) ‘Financial scrutiny, practice guide’ - https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/Financial-scrutiny-practice-guide_proof3.pdf  

89

https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Financial-scrutiny-practice-guide_proof3.pdf
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Financial-scrutiny-practice-guide_proof3.pdf


 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
- Hertsmere Council (two committees) 
- Welwyn & Hatfield Council (one committee + one sub committee) 
- Test Valley Council (one committee) 
- North West Leicestershire (two committees) 
- South Cambridgeshire Council (one committee) 

Note: Councils also use task & finish groups to add capacity 

 

• That the governance and scrutiny arrangement for the council’s commercial 
activities, including its teckal companies are reviewed. It is not suggested that 
Members become involved in operational matters or duplicate the role of the 
Companies Committee, but that a consistent and effective Member overview and 
scrutiny arrangement is clarified. 

 
7. Chairing and meeting preparation 

 
Scrutiny’s success is dependent on the right Members, with the right capabilities and attributes, 
leading and managing the scrutiny function. Current chairs at SKDC have varying levels of 
confidence in being able to lead and manage the scrutiny function in a neutral timely and effective 
manner and be confident in managing Cabinet Member involvement.  

The lack of opposition Members involved in scrutiny chairing roles was raised as an issue in our 
evidence gathering. Whilst there is no single right approach to selecting chairs - the emphasis 
ought to be on selecting chairs based on skill set and capability and providing ongoing training and 
support. To create confidence that scrutiny is a politically neutral environment, it may be helpful for 
SKDC to consider a more open approach to chair selection, e.g. by the Committees themselves.  

From our observations of committees, there is little evidence of co-ordinated questions or Members 
acting as a team with clear lines of inquiry. It has been highlighted that a number of Members do 
not prepare sufficiently for scrutiny meetings, leading to the presentation of officer reports that 
should have been read in advance and a missed opportunity for insightful questioning.  

Members were keen to receive papers far enough in advance to read and prepare properly. There 
was also some concerns expressed that the sign-off process for papers, including Cabinet Member 
sign-off, was leading to a lack of transparency on some issues and delays.  

We would recommend:  

• SKDC consider changing the process for the appointment of scrutiny chairs and 
vice-chairs and enabling committees to select themselves. This could be achieved 
by candidates presenting their credentials at the first meeting of the committee and a 
secret ballot held to elect the chair based on a ‘best person for the job’ principle. 
This may also provide the chair with extra independence and authority. 
 

• A review of the process for signing off papers to ensure that it is proportionate, 
supports their timely distribution and transparency. We would also recommend that 
papers and reports for scrutiny are considered by the Chair and Vice Chair and are 
not subject to review or sign-off by Cabinet Members. This will maintain the authority 
and independence of scrutiny to decide on the information it requires to hold the 
executive to account. 
 

 

90



 

 

 

 

 

 

• (Re)introducing pre-meetings before formal committee between all scrutiny Members 
to provide the space to identify priorities and agree questioning strategies.  

 

 

 

 

 

8. Member development 

 
Scrutiny provides an excellent opportunity for broader Member engagement and to support 
Members in getting an in-depth understanding of issues. To get the most out of scrutiny, Members  
need a clear sense of what is required of them as committee Members and the work involved 
which allows good scrutiny to happen.  
 
We noted that regular scrutiny training and briefings on issues such as finance is regularly offered 
to Members but with minimal take-up. There are plans to establish a Member group to support on 
development which will help to identify barriers taking up training and development and inform a 
new approach.  
 
We would recommend:  
 

• More targeted support is offered for people in key roles such as Chairs which can 
meet their needs, e.g. could take the form of coaching or mentoring.  

 
 

9.   External engagement 

In carrying out ‘external’ scrutiny work, it is important to ensure that scrutiny has a clear focus on 
objectives and is able to influence outcomes concerning the topic discussed.  

• We would recommend scrutiny exploring ways to allow greater access, openness 
and involvement. This could include inviting the public to offer ideas for work 
programmes and greater use of social media channels for resident input and 
communicating the progress and impact of scrutiny work. 

 
 

Thank you and acknowledgements 
 
We would like to thank the Chairs, Scrutiny Panel Members, Cabinet Members and officers who 
took part in interviews and the survey for their time, insights and open views.  
 
Yours sincerely,   
 
 
 

91



 

 

Ian Parry  
Head of Consultancy  

92



Scrutiny Review Action Plan 
 

Recommendation Action to date or current situation  Next steps 

 
CLARITY ON SCRUTINY’S ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

1. Further reinforcement of the role, purpose and value of 
scrutiny and there would be value in developing a protocol of 
working between the Cabinet and Scrutiny to provide clarity of 
scrutiny’s purpose at SKDC. This could be achieved through 
training or direct engagement with committees 
 

• Comprehensive review of the Council’s 
Constitution undertaken and new version 
adopted in May 2022 

• Terms of Reference set out in the Council’s 
newly adopted Constitution for each 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

• New Rules of Procedure in place as part of 
the newly adopted Constitution to specify 
the Council’s executive arrangements and 
the overview and scrutiny function and how 
the two functions relate and interact with 
each other 

• In-house training and externally facilitated 
training via the Association of Democratic 
Services Officers held for Chairmen and 
Vice-Chairmen of all Committees in July 
2022 

• Informal meetings held with Chairmen and 
Vice-Chairmen of Committees to consider 
and share good or best practice  

• Sessions held with the Council’s 
Conservative Group and Independent 
Group, facilitated by the Local Government 
Association, on the role and responsibilities 
of elected members and the specific role of 
members on Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• To provide training on the overview and 
scrutiny function for all Councillors on 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees, to be 
facilitated by the Centre for Governance 
and Scrutiny 

• To consider holding workshops to 
contribute to the development of a protocol 
for Overview and Scrutiny Committees and 
Cabinet with Cabinet Members and 
Chairmen/Vice-Chairmen of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees  

• To review examples of protocols in use by 
other Councils and examples of good 
practice by the Centre for Governance and 
Scrutiny 
 93



 

2. The planned changes to the way the organisation works 
provides an opportunity for scrutiny to be involved earlier in 
policy development and decision-making, as well as holding to 
account. Scrutiny could add significant value if it focused more 
on early scrutiny of policy development or on pre-scrutiny of 
key decisions. To be effective in doing this it needs to operate 
early in the cycle and to create a positive (but constructively 
challenging) working relationship with political decision-
makers. It also means that scrutiny spends more time looking 
forward towards the future, rather than in reviewing and 
monitoring past performance (although some of this is also 
necessary). This pre-scrutiny work also needs to be reflected 
in the work programme and agenda planning 

 

• Regular consideration of Committee work 
programmes by the Council’s Corporate 
Management Team 

• Informal meetings held with Chairmen and 
Vice-Chairmen of Committees to consider 
and share good or best practice regarding 
work programming and the effective use of 
agenda setting meetings and pre-meetings 
to manage work programmes more 
effectively  

• Encouraged use of the Cabinet Forward 
Plan to help plan items for effective pre-
decision scrutiny  

• A focused approach to scrutiny of cross-
cutting matters and the holding of joint 
meetings of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees for topics such as the 
Deepings Leisure Centre, the Arts Review 
and the grounds maintenance contract 

 

• To consider ways in which opportunities for 
pre-decision scrutiny and in-depth reviews 
through Task and Finish Groups can be 
built into the work programmes of Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees 

• To consider ways in which Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees can develop policy as 
part of considering their future work 
programmes, also through the use of Task 
and Finish Groups 

 
COLLABORATIVE APPROACH TO SCRUTINY 

 

3. SKDC develop a Cabinet-Scrutiny protocol to outline and 
reaffirm roles and responsibilities, dealing with the with the 
practical workings of scrutiny as well as the cultural dynamics 
included expected behaviours, access to information, etc 

 

• As set out in recommendation 1 above • As set out in recommendation 1 above 

4. That a positive opportunity for scrutiny to hold the Leader and 
Deputy Leader to account forms a regular part of the work 
programme. The Leader already attends scrutiny as required 
or invited and has indicated a preference to engage more and 
be visibly accountable to scrutiny for overall council progress. 
Therefore, a quarterly Leader/Deputy accountability session 
could provide an opportunity to hold the Leader/Deputy to 
account for progress on the delivery of an Integrated 
Corporate Plan and Budget Report and any other issues 
scrutiny feels is important 

 

• Acknowledgement of the recommendation 
and ensuring that Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee work programmes facilitate 
updates from the Leader/Deputy Leader on 
delivery of the Corporate Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• To consider reviews by each Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on progress made in 
respect of delivering the objectives of the 
Corporate Plan, with the Leader and/or 
Deputy Leader in attendance to present a 
report and answer any questions. A six-
monthly cycle seems more appropriate 
than quarterly given the strategy nature of 
the Corporate Plan and the fact that each 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meets 
approximately every six weeks 

94



 

• Addition of announcements by the Leader, 
Cabinet Member or Head of Paid Service 
at meetings of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees to ensure that there is a facility 
to appraise Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees of any relevant information or 
updates as and when they become 
available  
 

 
SCRUTINY’S FOCUS AND WORK PROGRAMME 

 

5. An annual process for developing the work programme across 
all of the scrutiny committees, engaging Members, Officers, 
partners and the public to prioritise the topics for review. This 
could involve a member workshop, where a shortlist of priority 
topics for the next 12 months are identified according to a 
selection criteria, discussed on their merit for scrutiny, and 
voted on 

 
 
 

• Regular consideration of Committee work 
programmes by the Council’s Corporate 
Management Team 

• Informal meetings held with Chairmen and 
Vice-Chairmen of Committees to consider 
and share good or best practice regarding 
work programming and the effective use of 
agenda setting meetings and pre-meetings 
to manage work programmes more 
effectively  

• Encouraged use of the Cabinet Forward 
Plan to help plan items for effective pre-
decision scrutiny  

• Development of a Partnerships Register to 
provide a better understand of the 
Council’s partnership arrangements 

 

• To consider the establishment an annual 
forum for Parish and Town Councils to 
facilitate engagement in respect of 
community issues  

• To consider how the Council engages with 
partners and ensures priority topics are 
scrutinised effectively 

• To consider holding workshops with each 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
consider and understand their priorities at 
least once a year 

• To ensure that outcomes from the above are 
reflected in respective Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee work programmes for 
the year ahead 

 

6. A review of the current approach to financial scrutiny (across 
all the committees) and MTFS/ budget scrutiny and the 
scrutiny of commercial arrangements and to ensure lessons 
from other council’s recent experiences have been applied 

 

• Financial scrutiny led by the Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

• Budget setting and the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy scrutinised by all 
Members of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees as part of the Budget 
Joint Scrutiny meeting 

• To consider undertaking a review of the 
current approach to be carried out and 
implemented for the 2023/24 budget cycle, 
to ensure that it is fit for purpose 

• To consider a change in the Constitution to 
ensure that amendments to the budget or 
alternative budgets are considered by the 
Chief Finance Officer prior to the day of the 
meeting to ensure that the proposals are 
financial sound and represent a balanced 
budget 

95



 

 
COMMITTEE STRUCTURE 

 

7. SKDC to consider a new model which either consists of an 
overarching committee with standing committees reporting to it 
or two committees, one with an internal and the other an 
external focus. There is also scope within a revised model to 
create task and finish groups or other flexible scrutiny capacity 

 

• The existing committee structure consists 
of four Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
forming its overview and scrutiny function, 
as follows: 
- Culture and Visitor Economy Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 
- Environment Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
- Finance, Economic Development and 

Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

- Rural and Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

 

• The Council’s committee structure includes 
the following other Committees which are 
not part of the Council’s overview and 
scrutiny function: 
- Companies Committee 
- Constitution Committee 
- Governance and Audit Committee 
- Licensing Committee 
- Planning Committee 

• To consider undertaking a review of the 
Committee structure in terms of the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny function and 
respective terms of reference of Committees, 
potentially based upon the following: 
- An Economic and Environment Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 
- A Housing and Communities Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 
- A Culture and Leisure Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee  
- The removal of the Constitution 

Committee, with its remit falling under 
the terms of reference of the 
Governance and Audit Committee 

- The removal of the Companies 
Committee, with responsibility for 
overview of respective companies being 
allocated to the relevant Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee or potentially the 
Governance and Audit Committee  

• To consider whether South Kesteven District 
Council’s size and committee structure is 
sufficient enough to justify an overarching 
Committee 

• To consider greater use of Task and Finish 
Groups  
 

8. That the governance and scrutiny arrangement for the 
council’s commercial activities, including its teckal companies 
are reviewed. It is not suggested that Members become 
involved in operational matters or duplicate the role of the 
Companies Committee, but that a consistent and effective 
Member overview and scrutiny arrangement is clarified 
 
 

 

• The Companies Committee is not part of 
the Council’s overview and scrutiny 
function  

• To consider undertaking a review of the role 
of the Companies Committee in the context 
of the Council’s committee structure to 
ensure that proportionate governance is 
provided to the Council’s companies  

96



 

 
CHAIRING AND MEETING PREPARATION 

 

9. SKDC consider changing the process for the appointment of 
scrutiny chairs and vice-chairs and enabling committees to 
select themselves. This could be achieved by candidates 
presenting their credentials at the first meeting of the 
committee and a secret ballot held to elect the chair based on 
a ‘best person for the job’ principle. This may also provide the 
chair with extra independence and authority 

• Appointments for Chairmen and Vice-
Chairmen are currently made at the Annual 
Meeting of the Council, according to their 
suitability and merit in the opinion of the 
Leader of the Council  

• To give due consideration to this 
recommendation ahead of the Annual 
Meeting of the Council in May 2023, with a 
view to allowing open nominations at the 
Annual Meeting and votes being held as 
necessary as opposed to each individual 
Committee electing Chairmen/Vice-
Chairmen at their first meetings following the 
Annual Meeting of the Council 
 

10. A review of the process for signing off papers to ensure that it 
is proportionate, supports their timely distribution and 
transparency. We would also recommend that papers and 
reports for scrutiny are considered by the Chair and Vice Chair 
and are not subject to review or sign-off by Cabinet Members. 
This will maintain the authority and independence of scrutiny 
to decide on the information it requires to hold the executive to 
account. 

 

• A new report template has been introduced 
and more training on appropriate sign-offs 
will be provided to Members and Officers  

• Informal meetings held with Chairmen and 
Vice-Chairmen of Committees to consider 
and share good or best practice regarding 
work programming and the effective use of 
agenda setting meetings and pre-meetings 
to manage work programmes more 
effectively  

 

• To review implementation of the new report 
template 

• To consider the relationship between 
Cabinet Members and the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees, particularly in relation 
to work programming, agenda setting and 
the level of engagement that Cabinet 
Members may have with Chairmen/Vice-
Chairmen of Committees  
 

11. (Re)introducing pre-meetings before formal committee 
between all scrutiny Members to provide the space to identify 
priorities and agree questioning strategies.  

 

• This practice is not currently in place 

• Informal meetings held with Chairmen and 
Vice-Chairmen of Committees to consider 
and share good or best practice regarding 
the running of meetings 

• To consider the principle of holding pre-
meetings prior to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings 
 

 
MEMBER DEVELOPMENT 

 

12. More targeted support is offered for people in key roles such 
as Chairs which can meet their needs  

 

• In-house training and externally facilitated 
training via the Association of Democratic 
Services Officers held for Chairmen and 
Vice-Chairmen of all Committees in July 
2022 

 

• To consider the training and development 
requirements of Chairmen and Vice-
Chairmen of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees  

 
 
 
 

97



 

 
EXTERNAL ENGAGEMENT 

 

13. We would recommend scrutiny exploring ways to allow greater 
access, openness, and involvement. This could include inviting 
the public to offer ideas for work programmes and greater use 
of social media channels for resident input and communicating 
the progress and impact of scrutiny work. 

 

As set out in recommendation 5 above As set out in recommendation 5 above 

 

98



 
 

       

Governance and 
Audit Committee 
 

28 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Adam Stokes, 
Deputy Leader of the Council 
 

 

 

Strategic Risk Register 
 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 tracey.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide an update on the Council’s Strategic Risk Register. 

 

Recommendation 

 

That the Committee notes the progress made of the actions for each of the 
strategic risks and identifies any areas of feedback.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

99

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no specific finance or procurement implications arising from this report.  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no specific legal and governance implications arising from this report. 

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.3 These are contained within the report. 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  One of the key areas for Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of 

reference, is to monitor and review the risk management arrangements in place 

and the activities that are being undertaken to mitigate those risks.  In accordance 

with Governance and Audit Committee’s workplan the Strategic Risk Register will 

be presented to Committee twice a year for review.  The Strategic Risk Register 

was last reviewed at the 20 April 2022 meeting of Governance and Audit 

Committee.   

 

2.2 The Strategic Risk Register is a dynamic and responsive document and is 

reviewed to reflect the current and changing environment of the Council from both 

internal and external influences.  The risk controls are those currently in place 

across the respective risk area and the ‘Action’ column captures the emerging and 

developing actions to further strengthen and mitigate the risk. 

 

2.3 The format of the Register consists of the following: 

 

• Risk Title and Description – brief description of risk 

• Effects of Risk Realisation – what would occur should the risk materialise 

• Current Circumstances – summary of the present situation 

• Risk Controls – summary of all the risk controls that are currently in place 

• Residual Risk Score – assessment of risk after risk controls considered 

• Actions – list of actions being undertaken along with a progress update 

100



2.4 Corporate Management Team has reviewed the strategic risks, including the 

actions, and the updated Register is attached at Appendix A with changes and 

action updates captured below. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Strategic Risk 1 – Ensuring efficient and effective internal control/compliance 

 

 Current circumstances have been updated to reflect the improvement in 

compliance in terms of landlord health and safety.  The level of non-compliance 

has led to an increased level of risk exposure.  Work is ongoing to seek removal 

of the Regulatory Notice. 

 

 Good progress has been made with implementing the actions: 

 

• Completion of the management Annual Assurance Statement 

• Completion of the action plan arising from the Independent Governance 

Review 

• Progress ongoing with social housing non-compliance with continued 

engagement with the Regulator.  There has been significant improvements 

across key performance areas and robust action plans are in place.  External 

audit validation to be sought late 2022/23 to support removal of the Notice 

• Completion and implementation of a comprehensive review of the 

Constitution, including the Scheme of Delegation.  The LGA model Councillor 

Code of Conduct has also been adopted 

 

There is a new action around a Combined Assurance Review to be undertaken 

by Assurance Lincolnshire – the approach is being discussed and agreed with 

the review planned for the autumn. 

 

3.2 Strategic Risk 2 – Achieving Council transformation 

 

 Good progress has been made with implementing the actions: 

 

• Approval has been provided to relocate the main Council offices to a reduced 

location at St Catherine’s Road, Grantham.  This will result in a significant 

reduction of operational costs and create an open plan working environment 

• Completion of “lessons learned” from Covid-19 with a report presented to 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 22 February 2022  

• Allocation of resource to support Corporate Plan ambitions with the 2023/24 

budget setting process following the Corporate Plan aims 

• Partnerships review, with other public sector partners to explore new and 

existing opportunities to deliver to residents and businesses, has commenced 

with a partnerships register being developed 

101



• Completion of Peer Review within 2021-22 with action plan being 

implemented 

• Completion and implementation of a comprehensive review of the 

Constitution, including the Scheme of Delegation.  The LGA Model Councillor 

Code of Conduct has also been adopted 

• Draft ICT Strategy has been developed and will be presented to Finance, 

Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee on 27 September 

 

The Residual Risk Score has been reviewed to reflect the good progress made 

with actions, with the Impact being reduced to “2 Moderate” (from “3 Major”) 

resulting in a Medium risk (from High).  

 

3.3 Strategic Risk 3 – Supporting communities 

 

 Good progress has been made with implementing the actions: 

 

• Condition surveys for Bourne, Grantham and Stamford leisure facilities have 

been independently assessed and a review is underway to segment and 

prioritise  

• Completion of the Covid-19 Recovery Plan with a view to moving to living with 

Covid-19 

• Progress made in the delivery of the Future High Streets Fund programme for 

Grantham was considered by Finance, Economic Development and 

Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 3 May 2022.  An 

update report will be considered within 12 months 

• Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee received a 

report on 14 June 2022 summarising the works, interventions, and activities 

untaken using the Welcome Back Fund, including lessons learned and 

recommendations for improvement 

• InvestSK was brought in-house in April 2022  

• Government response to Defra’s recent consultation on future proofing waste 

service delivery is still awaited.  A full service review including fleet, rounds 

and automation has commenced, and new routing software will support 

changes where necessary     

• Amendments to the Council’s Constitution relating to planning decision 

making were presented to Constitution Committee in April, as part of the 

wider review of the Constitution, and were further considered by Council in 

May 2022 

• Housing review has been undertaken and the Council has adopted an 

improvement plan, based on the regulatory framework, to improve services to 

Council tenants.  A tenant-wide survey has been undertaken – the “Big 

Listen” – to inform service improvements.  30 year Housing Revenue Account 

Business Plan is being developed over the next six months 

102



• The Council continues to work in partnership with the police and the 

community in tackling crime by investing in the CCTV service and 

development of a Community Safety Working Group 

• Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 6 

September 2022 considered key themes for inclusion in the new Cultural 

Strategy and endorsed the commencement of a procurement exercise to 

appoint a suitably qualitied consultant to work with Officers and Members to 

develop the new Strategy.  Work to commence on exploring an operating 

trust model for Stamford Arts Centre 

• The Council is working towards submission of the Local Plan to the Secretary 

of State in December 2023.  The Council has carried out a call for sites and 

officers are working through the information.  Work continues on various 

evidence based background documents that will inform the local plan 

 

3.4 Strategic Risk 4 – Achieving future financial resilience 

 

 Good progress has been made with implementing the actions: 

 

• Financial modelling undertaken alongside the development of the Medium 

Term Financial Plan.  Financial risk ratio analysis will be presented to 

Members as part of devlopeing the budget for 2023/24 

• Robust capital scoring and appraisal methodology forms part of the capital 

strategy and all capital bids are presented on a corporate template and 

scored alongside the Corporate Plan 

• Treasury Management Strategy has been updated in accordance with the 

Financial Management Code and will continue to be reviewed in response to 

the current financial climate 

• Corporate assets have been reviewed to balance the Council’s own 

accommodation needs, the operational needs of asset retention, holding 

costs and the disposal opportunity.  To support this review an Asset Disposal 

Strategy was approved by Cabinet in December 2021 

 

3.5 Strategic Risk 5 – Creating the right culture, capacity and capability 

 

 Good progress has been made with implementing the actions: 

 

• People Strategy 2022/25 was approved by Employment Committee in 

January 2022.  A working group has been established to review the pay of 

key roles across the Council  

• Annual appraisals have been completed by the majority in Quarter 1 with a 

final deadline of September 2022 

• Review of resources has been undertaken and Phase 2 of the restructure is 

currently underway to be completed this financial year 

• Employee Survey action plan has been created with input from the People 

Panel and the wider Council.  Implementation continues ahead of the next 

survey in November 2022 

103



• Learning and development programmes, including fostering leadership skills, 

is being deployed in September 2022 

• Political awareness training session being held in Quarter 3.  Member/Officer 

Protocol in place as part of the Constitution. Development sessions facilitated 

by the LGA held with Corporate Management Team, Cabinet, the 

administration and the opposition regarding roles and responsibilities 

 

3.6 Strategic Risk 6 – Ability to be agile and shift focus in response to policy, national 

political change, and changes to the external environment 

 

 The risk title has been expanded to include changes to the external environment. 

 

 Current circumstances have been updated to include the cost of living crisis 

which has been caused by unprecedented inflationary increases primarily related 

to the cost of utilities.  There is a new action around this: 

 

• Cost of living response group formed with an action plan being developed to 

support the community including residents and businesses 

 

 Policy Officer role has been created and the development of a Policies and 

Strategies Register will be a key objective which is an action from the recent 

internal audit of Governance. 

 

3.7 Strategic Risk 7 – Ensuring robust security measures to protect the Council’s 

data and assets from cyber threats 

 

Current circumstances has been updated to reference the creation of a Cyber 

Treatment Plan and that the East Midlands Cyber Security Network 

(EMGWARP) has reviewed the Council’s email security and a rating of 94% was 

awarded. 

 

 Good progress has been made with implementing the actions: 

 

• Office 365 fully rolled out to all users and devices 

• Penetration test undertaken in August 2021 and active monitoring developed 

• Online cyber training is available on the learning management software.  

Completion of the training will be monitored to ensure that it is completed by 

all key officers 

• Policies are being reviewed and updated where required to ensure they 

contain up-to-date information regarding ICT usage and cyber security  

• Cyber breach policy created including an incident playbook 

• Servers and software are in the process of  being replaced.  Any that cannot 

be removed will be secured by other means 

 

 

 

104



There is a new action around the Cyber Treatment Plan implementation: 

 

8 of the 20 High risk recommendations have been completed and the remaining 

12 are in progress.   

 

4 of the 9 Medium risk recommendations have been completed, 3 are in 

progress and 2 not started.   

 

1 of the 3 Low risk recommendations have been completed and the remaining 2 

have not been started 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 No other options are considered other than to note the report. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 The report is for noting. 

 

6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix A – Draft Strategic Risk Register  

 

 

105



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Draft Strategic Risk Register – September 2022 

Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

1.  Ensuring efficient and effective internal control/compliance  

Risk Description 
This risk focuses on the potential for failure of the Council’s core internal 
control (and governance) framework but leading to a significant loss ie 
financial and otherwise eg H&S failing.   
 
In effect the Council should be able to mitigate such a risk through rigorous 
review of design and application of the controls, hence ensuring that 
internal audit and other assurance activities are appropriately focused. 
 
The Council is entering a changing phase including changes in behaviour, 
management structure, working styles and culture which will require a 
flexible and adaptive internal control environment.   
 
The ramifications of a significant control risk failure are substantial, not only 
with regard to the loss but often the rectification costs post event, including 
financial and reputational. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- Potential for fraud, error, and loss 
- Reduced financial stability 
- Reputation damage resulting in negative media attention 
- Potential for harm/injury/death 
- Qualified External Audit Opinion/Internal Audit Opinion 
- Regulatory non-compliance (GDPR, HSE) and potential for government 

intervention 
 

Current Circumstances      
An internal audit review of housing compliance in March 2021 resulted in a 
negative opinion being provided, leading to the Council making a self-
referral to the Regulator of Social Housing for breaches of the Homes 
Standard.  An Improvement Plan, agreed with the Regulator, has been 
implemented to address the matters raised and the Council is now in a 
position of broad compliance in terms of landlord health and safety 
although further actions continue.  The level of non-compliance has led to 
an increased level of risk exposure.  Work is ongoing to seek removal of the 
Regulatory Notice. 

A. Annual internal audit plan developed by 
senior officers and members is targeted at 
key risks areas and responsive to new areas 
of risk  

B. External/internal audit regime   
C. Development of staff training plan in 

connection with core responsibilities and 
duties ie data protection, financial rules, 
freedom of information etc 

D. Annual Assurance Statements compiled 
testing compliance with key business 
activities, supporting Annual Governance 
Statement compilation 

E. Maintenance of a range of policies that 
underpin the control framework – Financial 
Regulations, Counter Fraud Strategy, Risk 
Management Framework, Contract 
Procedure Rules coupled with staff training   

F. Regular reporting at Governance and Audit 
Committee  

G. Compliance with Transparency Code  
H. Compliance with Local Code of Corporate 

Governance 
I. Review and update of key policies completed 

in last 12 months with a view that these will 
be kept under review 

J. Key compliance roles identified and assigned 
ie Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer, 
Data Protection Officer, H&S etc  

K. Compliance with information governance 
including General Data Protection Rule 

L. Review and update of Business Continuity 
Plans 

M. Corporate Plan 2021-2023  

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 4 

= 
High 8 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Completion of management Annual Assurance 
Statements and development of appropriate 
actions, tracked through to completion including 
evidence 
Progress Update:  Complete – Management have 
completed their Annual Assurance Statement and 
the summary has been captured within the 
Annual Governance Statement 
 

ii. Combined Assurance Review to be undertaken by 
Assurance Lincolnshire (New action) 
Progress Update:  The approach is being discussed 
and agreed, with the review being undertaken in 
the autumn 

 
iii. Implementation of the action plan arising from 

the Independent Governance Review  
Progress Update:  Complete – Action plan has 
been implemented and a closure report was 
accepted at Governance and Audit Committee 
 

iv. Undertake actions required to address Social 
Housing Regulator non-compliance and validate 
those actions undertaken have been effective   
Progress Update:  Ongoing with continued 
monthly engagement with the Regulator.  There 
has been significant improvements across key 
performance areas and robust action plans are in 
place.  External audit validation to be sought late 
2022/23 to support removal of the Notice 
 

v. Undertake a review of the Constitution and 
Officer Scheme of Delegation and implement 
outcomes  
Progress Update:  Complete – A comprehensive 
review of the Constitution, including the Scheme 
of Delegation, has been completed and 
implemented.  The LGA model Councillor Code of 
Conduct has also been adopted 

107



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

2.  Achieving Council transformation 

Risk Description 
The Council has entered a period of significant change and transformation, 
from back office through to front end delivery. 
 
This transformation will include but not be limited to: 
- harnessing better the use of technology and digital platforms 
- agile and flexible workforce that is managed by outcomes and delivery 
- physical changes ie buildings, assets usage etc as well as virtual 

interactions 
- working as part of a collaboration, partnership and joint venture involving 

other entities, both in the public sector, third sector and private sector 
 
All for the purpose of making the Council viable and sustainable as well as 
efficient, effective and economic. This risk should be considered as a driver 
of innovation and opportunity to achieve continuous improvement rather 
than a risk that needs to be managed in such a way that transformation 
envisaged is not achieved. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- New ways of working/service delivery models not adopted leading to 

increased inefficiency and ineffectiveness 
- Medium/long-term financial planning commitments not met 
- Failure to deliver Corporate Plan 2020-2023 objectives 
- Opportunities are not identified/ exploited 
- Staff disengagement 
 

Current Circumstances 
The emergence of Covid-19 has identified that the Council can effectively 
respond to a change in circumstances to ensure continuous operations. This 
rigor now needs to be applied to ensure this momentum continues and that 
positive experiences and benefits achieved as a result of recent changes are 
not lost. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A. New ways of working programme 
arrangements in place 

B. Communications plan (internal) allowing for 
regular staff engagement/progress updates 

C. Staff/union engagement  
D. Project management/capability 
E. Partnership lead 
F. ICT development roadmap and strategy 
G. Organisational change programme in place 
H. Commercial lead/capabilities in house to 

identify opportunities  
I. Regular reporting on transformation 

programme to Corporate Management 
Team 

J. Financial/budgetary monitoring by Cabinet 
K. Performance management and key 

performance indicators in place 
L. Staff/officer wellbeing and support  
M. Corporate Plan 2021-2023 
N. Development of Workforce Strategy and 

enabling an agile workforce 
O. Hybrid working model 
P. Staff appraisal process 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 2 

= 
Medium 4 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Review office accommodation and embed an agile 
approach to working by utilising cultural and 
technological changes  
Progress Update:  In progress 
Approval has been given to relocate the main 
Council offices to a reduced location on St 
Catherine’s Road.  This will result in a significant 
reduction of operational costs and create an open 
plan working environment 
 

ii. Instigate/continue to track “lessons learned” from 
Covid-19 with a view to identifying further 
opportunities that should be progressed in 
connection with improving service delivery 
Progress Update:  Complete – Report was 
presented to FEDCO on 22 February 2022 which 
captured the lessons learned from the pandemic 
and the Council’s response   
 

iii. Allocate resource to support Corporate Plan 
ambitions  
Progress Update:  The 2023/24 budget setting 
process will follow the Corporate Plan aims.  
Resources will be allocated appropriately to 
ensure actions will be delivered 
 

iv. Review partnerships with other public sector 
partners to explore new and existing 
opportunities to deliver to residents and 
businesses  
Progress Update:  The review has commenced, 
and a partnerships register is being developed 
 

v. Undertake a Peer Review within 2021-22 
Progress Update:  Complete – Peer Review has 
been undertaken and the action plan is being 
implemented.  A six month review will be held on 
21 September  
 
 

108



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

vi. Undertake a Constitution review and implement 
outcomes  
Progress Update:  Complete – A comprehensive 
review of the Constitution, including the Scheme 
of Delegation, has been completed and 
implemented.  The Local Government Association 
Model Councillor Code of Conduct has also been 
adopted  
 

vii. Review of ICT Strategy   
Progress Update:  A draft strategy has been 
developed and will be presented to Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 27 
September  

3.  Supporting communities  

Risk Description 
Creating safe, vibrant, and supportive communities is a core role of the 
Council. The Council holds a unique position with the ability to act as a 
catalyst for this purpose drawing together individuals, neighbourhoods, 
agencies, and businesses to transform communities.   
 
The Council does not want to position itself solely as the provider of services 
but be the mechanism that drives others to do so and provides steerage via 
the role of Members who have a unique insight into the needs of the 
District’s communities. This might be in a coordination, strategy, financing/ 
funding access role or a voice, as well as attracting investment, to name but 
just some of the enabling activities.   
 
This provides the Council the opportunity to think innovatively in 
conjunction with its communities to achieve a greater return through 
connectivity both physical, emotional, and technological. This risk should be 
considered as a driver of innovation and opportunity to achieve community 
improvement rather than a risk that needs to be managed in such a way 
that transformation envisaged is not achieved. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- Failure to deliver the Corporate Plan 2020-2023 objectives 
- Contributes to community deterioration/lack of resilience 
- Reputation damage for the Council – negative media attention 

A. Review and application of the Council’s Local 
Plan, including active monitoring of the 
implementation 

B. Clear and agreed transformation objectives 
C. SK Community focussed initiatives and 

funding streams targeted at supporting 
voluntary and community sectors  

D. InvestSK supporting economy growth  
E. Corporate Plan 2021-2023  
F. Community liaison officers/leads 
G. Customer Experience Strategy (how they 

access services etc) 
H. ICT Strategy 
I. Customer satisfaction feedback monitored to 

drive change 
J. Close working partnership with the Police 
K. New cultural strategy 
 
 
 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 3 

= 
High 6 

 
 
 
 

 

i. Develop strategy to invest in high quality leisure 
facilities across the district  
Progress Update:  Condition surveys for Bourne, 
Grantham and Stamford facilities have been 
independently assessed and a review is underway 
to segment and prioritise  
 

ii. Covid-19 Recovery Plan being implemented in 
partnership with others from the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum  
Progress Update:  Complete – Recovery Plan 
continues to be implemented with a view to 
moving to living with Covid-19 
 

iii. Regeneration of Grantham Town Centre 
supported by the Future High Street fund  
Progress Update:  A report providing progress 
made in the delivery of the Future High Streets 
Fund programme for Grantham was considered 
by Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 3 May 2022.  An update report will 
be considered within 12 months 
 
 

109



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

- Missed opportunities (to attract investment – generate income/improve 
quality of life for residents) 

- SKDC deliver services in a way that doesn’t meet needs of residents 
- Unfavourable perception/reality that the Council (and Members) are out 

of touch 
 

Current Circumstances 
Communities are likely to be negatively impacted due to Covid-19 further 
still as the national and local economy shrinks. This will create additional 
pressures on local businesses and job security. 
 
 
 

iv. Identify funding and other opportunities to 
support development of Bourne, Stamford and 
Market Deeping town centres  
Progress Update:  Culture and Visitor Economy 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee received a 
report on 14 June summarising the works, 
interventions, and activities untaken using the 
Welcome Back Fund, including lessons learned 
and recommendations for improvement 
 

v. Review the scope and focus of InvestSK to 
maximise the support to local businesses and 
attract inward investment  
Progress Update:  Complete – Following approval 
at Cabinet in February 2022, InvestSK was brought 
in-house in April 2022  
 

vi. Implement key actions for future proofing waste 
service delivery in line with national waste 
collection changes introduced by Defra  
Progress Update:  The Government response to 
Defra’s recent consultation is still awaited.  The 
Council has written to Government but as yet no 
timetable for publication has been made 
available.  A full service review including fleet, 
rounds and automation has commenced, and new 
routing software will support changes where 
necessary      
 

vii. Implement the recommendations from the 
planning review to improve performance and 
support local sustainable, high-quality growth 
Progress Update:  Complete – Amendments to 
the Council’s Constitution relating to planning 
decision making were presented to Constitution 
Committee in April, as part of the wider review of 
the Constitution, and were further considered by 
Council in May 2022 
 
 
 
 

110



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

viii. Undertake a housing review to provide highest 
quality service to tenants 
Progress Update:  The Council has adopted an 
improvement plan, based on the regulatory 
framework, to improve services to Council 
tenants.  A tenant-wide survey has been 
undertaken – the “Big Listen” – to inform service 
improvements.  30 year Housing Revenue 
Account Business Plan is being developed over 
the next six months 
 

ix. Continue to work in partnership with the police 
and the community in tackling crime by investing 
in the CCTV service  
Progress Update:  SKDC continues to liaise closely 
with Lincolnshire Police and has very strong 
working relationships in the continued operation 
of SKDC’s CCTV Service and development of a 
Community Safety Working Group 
 

x. Implement key actions arising from the Arts, 
Culture and Events Service Review 
Progress Update:  Culture and Visitor Economy 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 6 
September 2022 considered key themes for 
inclusion in the new Cultural Strategy and 
endorsed the commencement of a procurement 
exercise to appoint a suitably qualitied consultant 
to work with Officers and Members to develop 
the new Strategy.  Work to commence on 
exploring an operating trust model for Stamford 
Arts Centre 
 

xi. Review and application of the Council’s Local Plan, 
including active monitoring of the implementation 
Progress Update:  The Council is working towards 
submission of the plan to the Secretary of State in 
December 2023.  The Council has carried out a 
call for sites and officers are working through the 
information.  Work continues on various evidence 
based background documents that will inform the 
local plan 
 

111



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

 
 
 

4.  Achieving future financial resilience 

Risk Description 
This risk relates to the Council being unable to properly execute and achieve 
its Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). 
 
The Council is developing a coherent and sustainable response to the 
forecasted reductions in funding over the medium term. The successful 
transformation of the Council will not only impact on the Council outlook 
and culture, ie a council that makes good evidenced based decisions and 
gets things done but will also have a significant impact on Council finances. 
 
The current budget incorporates budgeted savings and delivery of income 
streams which need to be managed and realised to ensure that balanced 
budgets can be achieved without any reliance on the use of reserves. 
 
This risk is also closely linked to the delivery of the Council transformation 
agenda and is reliant on ensuring that the Council has available suitable 
skills and experiences to support initiatives. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- Reduction in cashflow position - breach banking/loan covenants 
- Reduced financial stability 
- Opportunities cannot be pursued – future reductions required (staff/non-

statutory service provision) 
- Reputational damage resulting in negative media attention 
- Qualified External Audit Opinion/ Internal Audit Opinion 
- Increased scrutiny/intervention 
 

Current Circumstances 
The likely economic slowdown that has been predicted as a result of Covid-
19 has the potential to weaken the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) as 
the opportunity to generate new income streams could now be less as the 
economy shrinks, coupled with the potential for further need to support 
communities due to closure of local businesses and job losses. In the longer 
term it is likely that austerity measures will return.  
 
The Housing Revenue Account Business Plan will be updated following the 
financial modelling arising from the 100% stock condition survey. A full 

A. Annual review of MTFP updating the three 
year horizon scan including reserve levels 
and future changes to funding   

B. Annual budget setting for revenue and 
capital including funding    

C. Utilisation of external financial support that 
provides support for funding modelling    

D. Regular budget monitoring reports and 
updates to senior officers and Members   

E. Treasury Management Strategy to ensure 
the Council are acting within the prudential 
indicators    

F. Development of savings plans and invest to 
save initiatives 

G. Maintain appropriate level of financial 
reserves as contingency arrangements to 
provide resilience over the medium term  

H. Development of capital plans in accordance 
with Capital Strategy with full financial 
appraisal and revenue implications 

I. Development of commercial opportunities 
and income generation proposals in order to 
build financial headroom  

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 3 

= 
High 6 

 
 
 
 

 

i. Continuation of the development of the strategic 
finance modelling under different scenarios 
Progress Update:  Financial modelling undertaken 
alongside the development of the MTFP.  
Financial risk ratio analysis will be presented to 
Members as part of developing the budget for 
2023/24 
 

ii. Evaluation of capital scoring and appraisal 
methodology to ensure capital schemes support 
the outcomes of the Corporate Plan  Progress 
Update:  This robust methodology forms part of 
the capital strategy and all capital bids are 
presented on a corporate template and scored 
alongside the Corporate Plan 
 

iii. Review of Treasury Management Strategy – 
specifically borrowing proposals 
Progress Update:  The Strategy has been updated 
in accordance with the Financial Management 
Code and will continue to be reviewed in 
response to the current financial climate 
 

iv. Undertake asset management review and 
development of asset management plan 
Progress Update:  Corporate assets have been 
reviewed to balance the Council’s own 
accommodation needs, the operational needs of 
asset retention, holding costs and the disposal 
opportunity.  To support this review an Asset 
Disposal Strategy was approved by Cabinet in 
December 2021 

112



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

stock condition survey is being undertaken to allow a review of the business 
plan and development of a clear Asset Management Strategy.  
 

5.  Creating the right culture, capacity and capability  

Risk Description 
This risk relates to the Council being unable to successfully achieve the level 
of change expected and required by Council leaders and stakeholders. In 
creating the change will come a new culture and outlook that is described as 
“agile” and “outcome focussed” ie we do what we say we will. 
 
Key to the above will be ensuring that: 
- The Council keeps under close watch recruitment, talent development 

and retention, as well as use of external specialists where necessary 
- Partnership and collaborative working is optimised 
- An appropriate operating environment and culture is created that will 

enable the necessary changes to occur. This may require a review of 
constitutional policies and procedures and a re-assessment of risk 
appetite at all levels in the Council, specifically members 

- Member/officer mind sets are aligned regards the change initiatives 
enabling the appropriate cultural change 

 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- Reduced staff motivation/morale/staff burn out resulting in high 

sickness/absences 
- Poor performance 
- High recruitment and agency costs 
- Lack of innovation 
- Skill gaps 
- Deterioration of service quality through loss of experienced staff 
- Reputation damage via social media 
 

Current Circumstances 
There have been a number of recent management changes, coupled with 
the continued impact of Covid-19, which has created some elements of 
uncertainty, whether real or perceived, and this can undermine resilience of 
staff.  The LGA Corporate Peer Challenge identified that SKDC has much to 
be proud of, particularly with regards to the response to Covid-19 and the 
way in which the Leadership team have addressed long standing challenges.  
 
 

A. The staff requisition process (assessment of 
needs and business case re posts)   

B. Culture change workshops/action plan to 
enhance mindsets, encourage collaboration 
and engender a culture that enables change 
and innovation   

C. Mapping of talent to corporate strategy as 
part of resource determination 

D. Learning and development programme 
providing training, tools and techniques to 
develop the necessary skills    

E. Check-ins (PDRs) 
F. People and Organisational Development 

Strategy revised and issued   
G. Investigation and identification of further 

collaborations that will support building 
capacity and capability (and resilience) 
including both public and corporate business 

H. Corporate Plan 2021-2023 
 
 
 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 3 

= 
High 6 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Review People and Organisational Development 
Strategy to include a pay review and agile working 
styles  
Progress Update:  People Strategy 2022/25 was 
approved by Employment Committee in January 
2022.  A working group has been established to 
review the pay of key roles across the Council  
 

ii. Undertake an assessment of Council corporate 
resilience with a view to creating a programme of 
learning and development that will strengthen 
individual coping strategies and performance 
Progress Update:  Annual appraisals have been 
completed by the majority in Q1 with a final 
deadline of September 2022 
 

iii. Undertake annual review of resources across the 
Council 
Progress Update:  A review has been undertaken 
and Phase 2 of the restructure is currently 
underway to be completed this financial year 
 

iv. Develop action plan arising from employee survey 
Progress Update:  Action plan has been created 
with input from the People Panel and the wider 
Council.  Implementation will continue ahead of 
the next survey in November 2022 
 

v. Undertake learning and development 
programmes including fostering leadership skills 
Progress Update:  This will be deployed in 
September 2022 
 

vi. Embed positive member/officer relationship 
Progress Update:  Political Awareness training 
session being held in Quarter 3.  Member/Officer 
Protocol in place as part of the Constitution. 

113



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

Development sessions facilitated by the LGA held 
with the Corporate Management Team, Cabinet, 
the administration and the opposition regarding 
roles and responsibilities 

6.  Ability to be agile and shift focus in response to policy, national political change, and changes to the external environment  

Risk Description 
This risk relates to the Council being unable to identify, interpret and act 
on/respond to political, policy change and changes to the external 
environment, and therefore best position itself to maximise on 
opportunities that this may present or to mitigate risks that may emerge as 
a result and impact on existing plans and strategies. 
 
The UK is still transitioning through Brexit of which there is still large scale 
uncertainty at a macro level and how this may translate at a local level both 
economically and socially, for communities, business and the Council itself. 
Similar is the outcomes of the recent election with the Government 
embarking on its future path which is intrinsically linked with Brexit. In 
addition, there are a number of changes in other public sector bodies which 
will or could impact on the Council/ Communities. The Council needs to be 
well positioned to have early sight of these and potential implications. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- Potential breach of regulation/ legislation 
- Threat to future financial viability 
- Trigger regulator inspections/scrutiny 
- Missed opportunities/failure to exploit opportunities that may arise 
- Council becomes disconnected from residents/local businesses 
- Management has to spend increased resources on ‘firefighting’ 
- Negative media and press 
 

Current Circumstances 
There are two dimensions that should be recognised at this point:  
  
- The potential for a further economic financial crisis, including likely future 

austerity measures  
- The cost of living crisis which has been caused by unprecedented 

inflationary increases primarily related to the cost of utilities 

A. Continuous monitoring of political landscape 
to allow for early indicators of policy change  

B. Prudent financial and strategy assumptions 
to allow for agile responses (see controls 
under Risk 4 re MTFP) 

C. Corporate Plan 2020-2023 reviewed and 
updated where appropriate as changes 
identified that could impact on the Council 
and its plans ie Covid-19 

D. Section 151 Officer role providing advice to 
the Council on current/future financial 
challenges 

E. Monitoring Officer role providing advice to 
the Council on current/future legal 
challenges 

F. Reports to committee include explicit 
assessment of implications and therefore 
should identify/reflect current and future 
challenges 

G. Executive to undertake horizon scanning 
look out/forwards and identify possible 
challenges ahead 

H. Membership of Local Government 
Association etc providing 
information/insights to the Council 

I. Members roles and responsibilities including 
involvement in local networks, County 
Council, other agencies and national forums, 
enabling insight to be gained and shared 
with the Council  

J. Staff membership of professional bodies 
enabling own development and also 
providing for insights through membership 
of challenges that may present themselves 
to the Council 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 4 

= 
High 8 

 
 
 
 

 

i. Develop stakeholder map/engagement plan to 
identify key individuals/organisations 
 

ii. Establish, maintain and monitor a list of 
“emerging risks” and undertake scenario planning 
 

iii. CMT to attend professional events/forums and 
provide feedback  
 
Progress Update:  There are proposals to allocate 
specific resource to identify and capture national 
and regional policy change that may impact on 
the Council  
 
Following a restructure of the teams a post of 
Policy Officer has been developed.  Following 
successful recruitment, a new staff member is due 
to start in October 2022.  Development of a 
Policies and Strategies Register will be a key 
objective, which is an action from the recent 
internal audit of Governance     
 

iv. Cost of living response group formed (New action) 
Progress Update:  Action plan being developed to 
support the community including residents and 
businesses 

114



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

K. Officer/member forums and networks 
including County Council, other Lincolnshire 
Councils and wider agencies for purpose of 
collaboratively tackling issues etc 
 

7.  Ensuring robust security measures to protect the Council’s data and assets from external threats  

Risk Description 
This risk relates to the Council’s ability to defend itself against the 
constantly evolving threat from cyber based attack. The Council, in common 
with other public bodies, should be regarded as a high profile target given 
the impact and publicity a successful attack can have. 
 
The Council, through the measures in place, repels almost on a daily basis 
“attack vectors” launched by adversaries from across the globe. The risk to 
the Council of not maintaining these effective controls and it’s continuing to 
invest in these countermeasures is very high. 
 
Officer education and vigilance in identifying suspicious contacts is as 
important as the security systems that are in place. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
The consequences of a successful attack can have a number of 
consequences, not just operational but also reputational. The impact is not 
just an internal one, but it also has consequences for our customers if we 
cannot provide our essential services. 
 

Current Circumstances 
Over the years IT have installed, upgraded, and maintained various security 
systems to ensure the continued protection of Council systems and data. 
 
Policies and procedures are in place to help ensure all necessary measures 
are taken by IT officers and Council staff to detect and prevent any malicious 
access attempts. 
 
Specialist cyber training has been delivered to relevant IT staff as well as cyber 
awareness training authority wide. 
 
A recent audit identified areas of potential weakness and a Cyber Treatment 
Plan was created.  This is being actioned with a deadline of February 2023 
for all actions to be completed. 
 

A. Physical enterprise level firewalls are in place 
on the Council’s network.  A default deny-all 
principle is adopted for the firewall rule base 
with a limited number of permitted 
connections to the network.  

B. Email is screened in the cloud before being 
delivered to end users. Outlook also checks 
on the device  

C. Antivirus software – Anti-virus installed on 
all network servers and computers. 
Definitions are updated daily and on access 
file scanning enabled on all laptop and daily 
full scans on servers.  Any files identified as 
infected or suspicious are blocked and 
notification sent to IT staff 

D. Encryption – Encryption is used on all 
laptops issued. Any external devices such as 
USB drives must also be encrypted for use. 
This protects against online and physical 
theft 

E. Endpoint devices – Non approved devices 
cannot be used and are blocked  

F. Patches are set to be automatically 
downloaded and installed on all devices by 
policy 

G. Penetration testing is carried out by an 
external supplier to audit/test the 
effectiveness of the measures in place. A 
report is provided of any recommended 
actions.  Active monitoring of external 
interfaces is in place and unusual activity is 
reported to IT officers 

H. A programme of familiarisation training is in 
place which simulates Malware attacks and 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 4 

= 
High 8 

 
 
 
 

 

i. Continued development of Office 365 services to 
improve email and anti-virus protections  
Progress Update:  Complete – Office 365 fully 
rolled out to all users and devices 
 

ii. Carry out annual penetration test  
Progress Update:  Penetration test undertaken in 
August 2021 and active monitoring developed 
 

iii. Annual refresher training on cyber risks for all 
staff  
Progress Update:  Complete – Online cyber 
training is available on the learning management 
software.  Completion of the training will be 
monitored to ensure that it is completed by all 
key officers 
 

iv. Scheduled review of policies 
Progress Update:  Policies are being reviewed and 
updated where required to ensure they contain 
up-to-date information regarding ICT usage and 
cyber security  
 

v. Cyber breach policy needs to be created 
Progress Update:  Complete – Incident playbook 
created 
 

vi. Remove any end-of-life hardware and software 
from the domain  
Progress Update:  Servers and software are in the 
process of  being replaced.  Any that cannot be 
removed will be secured by other means 
 

vii. Completion of the actions identified in the Cyber 
Treatment Plan 

115



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

East Midlands Cyber Security Network (EMGWARP) has reviewed the 
Council’s email security and a rating of 94% was awarded. 

provides training and support to re-enforce 
the messages 

I. Awareness training for officers and Members 
on the threats of cyber attacks is provided 
annually 

J. Continued reviewing and tightening of 
existing IT Security Policy to ensure 
measures adapt to the changing threat, 
including awareness, familiarisation and 
training 

K. Acceptable use of IT policy to ensure staff 
are using equipment safely and 
appropriately 

L. Relationships with other agencies, such as 
EMGWARP and National Security Council, to 
improve awareness of threats by alerts, 
bulletins and regular meetings 

Progress Update:   
8 of the 20 High risk recommendations complete 
(12 in progress) 
4 of the 9 Medium risk recommendations 
complete (3 in progress, 2 not started) 
1 of the 3 Low risk recommendations complete 
(2 not started) 
 

 

116



 

117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Governance and Audit Committee Work Plan 2022-23 
 

Committee Membership: 7 
 

Chairman: Councillor Paul Wood 
 

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley 
 

Item Current Issues/Status Outcome Sought 

 

 28 September 2022  

2021-22 External Audit Plan The report provides an overview of the planned scope and timing 
of the statutory audit of South Kesteven District Council for those 
charged with governance.  
 

To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

Internal Audit Progress Report  Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

Strategic Risk Register The Strategic Risk Register is presented to the Committee twice a 
year as part of the monitoring and review of the risk management 
arrangements. 

To review and consider approving 
the Strategic Risk Register. 

Health and Safety Annual 
Report 2021/22 

Report to give an overview of the health and safety management 
arrangements within South Kesteven District Council and identify 
key areas of focus. 

To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

Ombudsman Annual Report  Annual review of complaints received and decisions made from 
the Local Government Ombudsman Letter. 

To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

Scrutiny Review Report summarising the key findings from the scrutiny review.  To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

 28 November 2022  

External Audit Annual 
Governance Report 

Report outlining the key findings arising from the statutory audit of 
South Kesteven District Council. 

To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

119

A
genda Item

 11



Item Current Issues/Status Outcome Sought 

  

Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
including the Annual 
Governance Statement  

The Statement of Accounts, including the Annual Governance 
Statement, must be approved each year by the statutory 
deadline. 

To approve the 2021/22 Statement 
of Accounts and their publication on 
the Council’s website. 

 14 December 2022  

Internal Audit Progress Report  
 

Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors To review and note the contents of 
the report. 
 

Indicative Internal Audit Plan 
2023/24 
 

Internal Audit to present the indicative Internal Audit Plan for 
2023/24. 

To review and note contents of plan 
for 2023/24. 

Treasury Management Mid-Year 
Review 
 

Update on treasury and debt management operations during the 
financial year. 

To review and note the contents of 
the Mid-year review. 

Treasury Management Strategy 
 

To approve the Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23. To review and note the contents of 
the Strategy.  
 

Safeguarding Annual Report 
2021/22 
 

An overview of the Council’s involvement in the safeguarding of 
children, young people and vulnerable adults for 

2021/22. 
 

To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

Review of Effectiveness and 
Terms of Reference 

Biennial review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference  To consider the Committee’s work 
over the previous two municipal 
years and suggest changes to the 
Terms of Reference if necessary. 

 15 March 2023  

Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 Internal Audit to present Audit Plan for 2023/24. To review and note the contents of 
the plan. 
 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. To review and note the contents of 
the progress report. 
 

External Audit Annual Report on 
Grants and Returns  

Report providing details on the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim. To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

120



Item Current Issues/Status Outcome Sought 

 

Strategic Risk Register The Strategic Risk Register is presented to the Committee twice a 
year as part of the monitoring and review of the risk management 
arrangements. 

 

To review and consider approving 
the Strategic Risk Register. 

Statement of Accounting 
Policies  
 

Annual report prior to the preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts to ensure that the policies are up to date and in line with 
the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

 

To consider approving the 
Statement of Accounting Policies. 

Items to be allocated as and when required 

Financial Regulations 

Code of Corporate Governance 

Code of Conduct 

Contract Procedure Rules 

Risk Management Framework 

Counter Fraud Framework 

 

 

 

 

121



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2022
	4 Updates from previous meeting
	5 2021-2022 External Audit Plan
	6 Internal Audit Progress Report
	7 Annual Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Report 2021-2022
	Appendix A - Annual Health and Safety Report 2021-2022

	8 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman - Annual Review Letter 2022.
	Appendix A - Annual Review Letter

	9 Short Scrutiny Improvement Review - Centre for Governance and Scrutiny
	Appendix A – Centre for Governance and Scrutiny feedback letter
	Appendix B - Scrutiny Review Action Plan

	10 Strategic Risk Register
	Appendix A - Draft Strategic Risk Register September 2022

	11 Work Programme 2022 - 2023

